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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)
BRBERZMERLF (B GEMHEE

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents
of this report.

This report for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Vision
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, and together with its

” o«

subsidiaries, the “Group”, “we” or “our”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Group. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and
belief, the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any

Statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company, |
am pleased to present the annual report of Group for the year ended
31 December 2020.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND PROSPECTS
Throughout the year of fierce competition and challenging market
environment, the Group’s total revenue increased to HK$92.8 million,
showing an increase of approximately 9.6% as compared to the year
ended 31 December 2019. Meanwhile, the net profit of the Group for
the year decreased to HK$2.6 million, showing a decrease of
approximated 18.8% as compared to the year ended 31 December
2019. This decrease in profitability was caused by the decrease in
gross profit margin of the apparel products business due to the
pessimistic sentiment on the global retail markets, which made our
customers tend to make orders with lower average selling prices that
led to a tumble in the gross profit margin.

The coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) pandemic is persistently
weighing heavily on the macroeconomic and the worldwide retail
environment. Although the silver lining might emerge from this
unprecedented upheaval to the mankind upon the COVID-19 vaccine
rollout, we expect the pessimistic sentiment is still hovering on, until
more solid signs of progress that the pandemic situation is to be
brought under control. It would take time for global markets and
economies to recover.

Traversing the first half year of 2021, the forthcoming business
environment would remain challenging, as we saw quite a number of
well-established apparel retailers have encountered financial
difficulties in 2020, amidst the persisting COVID-19 pandemic.

The Group’s profitability had been severely affected by COVID-19
since 2019. The travel restriction caused by COVID-19 has hindered
our overseas customers from visiting us or us from visiting them for
making sales orders. Moreover, in view of the weakening retail
markets, customers would tend to make orders with lower average
selling prices, which led to a tumble in our gross profit margin of the
apparel business.

To cope with the lingering business downturn, our management has
already taken cost-control measures since 2019 to reduce our
operating costs. Going forward, the Group will continue to keep a
close eye on the appropriate ways to apply such measures.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND PROSPECTS
(Continued)

Moreover, in order to diversify the income stream of the Group, the
Group has started exploring new business opportunities in the
business of construction and related materials to ASEAN countries
since the second quarter of 2020. The Directors are of the view that,
the expansion into the construction materials business would bring
more stable revenue to the Group, as the sales of construction
materials is less affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and the US-
China trade war.

Nevertheless, to confront the external uncertainties, we are closely
monitoring our existing business operations and the possible impacts
brought by the COVID-19 pandemic, and taking appropriate actions
to tackle such impacts. On production side, measures are taken to
make sure the impact on the production and shipment is mitigated as
much as possible, such as more comprehensive planning on
production schedules with suppliers and the logistics of raw materials
and finished goods. On customer side, our team is following up
proactively with our major customers via electronical means, in order
to minimize the impact on the sales orders at our best endeavours.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my sincere gratitude to the Group’s management and staff for their
commitment and dedication throughout the year. | would also like to
express my deep gratitude to all our business partners, customers,
suppliers and the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
for their continuous support. The growth of the Group would not be
attained without the support and efforts from all the stakeholders. We
shall continue to strive our best to develop and grow to maximise
values for our Shareholders.

Ko Sin Yun
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBNWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our Group is based in Hong Kong and generates revenue mainly
from (i) the sales of apparel products with the provision of SCM
services to customers, delivering one-stop solution to customers in
Europe and Asia; and (ii) the agency fees from the sales of
construction and related materials to sourcing agents in South East
Asia.

As a well-established apparel SCM services provider, we have
developed a vertically integrated business model with services
ranging across market trend analysis, product design and
development, sourcing of suppliers, production management,
logistics services and quality control. Through engaging us for apparel
SCM services, our customers are able to focus their resources on
their retail businesses and respond quickly to the fast-evolving
changes of the fashion industry, as they do not have to separately
engage different suppliers for various types of services throughout the
apparel supply chain.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$92.8 million, showing an increase of
approximately 9.6% as compared to revenue of approximately
HK$84.7 million for the same period in 2019. The gross profit margin
of the Group decreased to 17.2% for the year ended 31 December
2020 as compared to 25.5% from the preceding year. This change in
the Group’s profitability was mainly attributable to the decrease in
gross profit margin of the apparel products business due to the
pessimistic sentiment on the global retail markets, which made our
customers tend to make orders with lower average selling prices that
led to a tumble in the gross profit margin.

The profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 decreased by
HK$0.5 million to HK$2.6 million, from HK$3.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERB Wk DM

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES
WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

The Group’s business objective is to become a key market player in
the Hong Kong apparel SCM industry. The proceeds raised from the
listing on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”) on 4 May 2018
(the “Listing Date”) is targeted to be used for expanding our
business to maintain and strengthen our market position by pursuing
our business strategies. An analysis comparing the business
objectives as set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 23
April 2018 (the “Prospectus”) with the Group’s actual business
progress for the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December
2020 is set out below:

EBEREERRBEENLER

AEENEBEZEDIR AT BREHREREERT
¥MEBMHLEE - R2018F5 448 ([ L™
BED)EBXAMGEM Em (T L) MERIEE
ERRNERER  BEHTESRRALFITZE
BMEmisER - A AF AH /201844 A28
HORERER((BRER]) MEEBHAEERE
E A ETMHBBRE20205F12 A31 B ILHIBMNE
PREFBEE LR TEINAT

Actual business progress for the period from the

Business objectives Listing Date to 31 December 2020

E3 3= HEmHHEZE20205F12 831 HHBNEREKERE

Continue our growth by solidifying our relationship with Our staff paid visits to our existing and new customers.
existing customers and exploring new customers

FREERMERAFEPHARKAEFEPTERKM BTIRSBRMNBBLFER -
Hig

Increase our geographic footprint to Our staff explored and paid visits to a number of potential
new apparel retail market new customers located in Europe and Asia. The Group

has successfully commenced business relationship with

a number of them.
ENBEMHESEEREEZTRETETS STEREZNEDZ A ABON RN BEREF -
REBEKINEEFRZEHTEPHEEBBER -

Set up a new showroom to showcase our product The Group has acquired a new showroom on 10
offerings September 2018 to showcase its product offerings.
FUFRINEUNRTEMNERES REEPR 20184 9 A 10 B U EFR 51| 2= LA R F AP

E’]FDD: °

Strengthen our design and development capabilities to The Group has prepared a wider variety of sample
develop new design collection products for our design collections in the new

showroom.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBNWR DM

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES
WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS (Continued)

EBRERREREBEENLEE @

Actual business progress for the period from the

Business objectives

RXBER

Listing Date to 31 December 2020
BLETmAMEZ2020F12 A31 HHENEREKEE

Enhance our quality control process

Our quality control team performed on-site quality

inspections at the location of our suppliers.

RARMNEEZ)BE

Repay bank borrowings

HEEVEERHEEEMENHETERE SRR -

HK$5.2 million of bank borrowing has been repaid, as set

out in the section headed “statement of Business

Objective and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.

BEBITER
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by 9.6% from HK$84.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to HK$92.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. The increase was mainly attributable to the
increased revenue from (i) the customers in Hong Kong and Macau
for apparel products, and (i) agency fees income of the customers in
Cambodia for construction and related materials, such agency fee
income represented gross income of HK$20.6 million less cost of
sales HK$19.7 million.

Cost of sales

The cost of sales mainly consists of purchase costs, import duty and
other cost of sales. Purchase cost represents the cost of finished
goods purchased from suppliers located in the People’s Republic of
China, Madagascar and Cambodia. The cost of sales increased by
21.7% from HK$63.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to HK$76.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was
in line with the increase in revenue.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit was HK$21.6 million and HK$16.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and 2020, respectively. The gross profit
margin decreased from 25.5% for the year ended 31 December 2019
to 17.2% for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in gross profit margin of the apparel
products business due to the pessimistic sentiment on the global
retail markets, which made our customers tend to make orders with
lower average selling prices that led to a tumble in the gross profit
margin.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERB Wk DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Other income

The other income amounted to HK$0.6 million and HK$0.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2020, respectively, mainly
derived from the government grant of the Employment Support
Scheme from the Hong Kong government, which was COVID-19
related subsidies and to a lesser extent, sample sales income.

Other gains and losses

Other gains and losses mainly represent the net foreign exchange
gain resulted from fluctuations in the exchange rate of the foreign
currency incurred in our operation, offset by bad debts written off.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses mainly include staff costs,
customer service fee, freight and transportation cost, travelling
expenses, design fee, sample and development cost and other selling
and distribution expenses.

The selling and distribution expenses amounted to HK$8.3 million
and HK$5.3 million for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020
respectively. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease
in exhibition fees for participating in trade fairs and travelling expenses
due to the global travelling restrictions as a result of the COVID-19
outbreak.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses mainly include professional fees, staff
costs (including Directors’ remuneration), amortisation of intangible
assets, depreciation, rent and rates and other administrative
expenses.

The administrative expenses remained stable at HK$8.5 million and
HK$8.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2020,
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWEROMN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs amounted to approximately HK$0.5 million
and HK$0.6 million for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020
respectively and remained stable.

Income tax expense

The Income tax expense mainly represents Hong Kong profits tax on
the assessable profits arising from Hong Kong and amounted to
HK$0.9 million and HK$0.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 and 2020, respectively.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed
into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25% and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group
entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Profit for the year

The profit attributable to owners of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 was HK$2.6 million, while the Group recorded a
profit attributable to owners of the Group of HK$3.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease in gross profit as explained above.

Charge on the Group’s assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group pledged the property comprising
workshops 1-3 and 5-7 on 3rd Floor of China United Plaza, No.
1008 Tai Nan West Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong to a bank for the
bank finance facility for the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERB Wk DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Share capital

The Shares were successfully listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on the Listing Date. The share capital of the Group only
comprises ordinary shares. Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions
passed at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
3 August 2020, the Company implemented the share consolidation
with effect from 5 August 2020 (the “Share Consolidation”), on the
basis that every ten issued and unissued existing shares of the
Company of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into one consolidated
share of HK$0.1 each, ranked pari passu in all respects with each
other. Upon completion of the Share Consolidation, the Company’s
share capital consists of 100,000,000 consolidated shares of HK$0.1
each and there has been no change in the capital structure of the
Group since then. As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s issued
share capital was HK$10,000,000 and the number of its issued
ordinary Shares was 100,000,000 of HK$0.1 each.

Major and Connected Transaction
There is no major and connected transaction during the year ended
31 December 2020.

Significant investment held
As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not hold any significant
investment.

Contingent liabilities
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities or
guarantees as at 31 December 2020.

Foreign exchange exposure

The revenue of the Group is mainly denominated in US$, while a
certain amount of the revenue is denominated in HK$ and EUR
(‘EUR").

The Group considers that the foreign exchange risk with respect to
US$ is not significant as HK$ is pegged to US$.

For the transaction denominated in EUR during the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group considers there is no significant foreign
exchange risks in respect of EUR.

Nevertheless, the Group will endeavour to manage the foreign
exchange risk by closely monitoring the movement of foreign currency
rates and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBNWR DM

PROSPECTS

The COVID-19 pandemic is persistently weighing heavily on the
macroeconomic and the worldwide retail environment. Although the
silver lining might emerge from this unprecedented upheaval to the
mankind upon the COVID-19 vaccine rollout, we expect the
pessimistic sentiment is still hovering on, until more solid signs of
progress that the pandemic situation is to be brought under control. It
would take time for global markets and economies to recover.

Traversing the first half year of 2021, the forthcoming business
environment would remain challenging, as we saw quite a number of
well-established apparel retailers have encountered financial
difficulties in 2020, amidst the persisting COVID-19 pandemic.

The Group’s profitability has been severely affected by COVID-19.
The travel restriction caused by COVID-19 has hindered our overseas
customers from visiting us or us from visiting them for making sales
orders. Moreover, in view of the weakening retail markets, customers
would tend to make orders with lower average selling prices, which
led to a tumble in our gross profit margin of the apparel business.

To cope with the lingering business downturn, our management has
already taken cost-control measures since 2019 to reduce our
operating costs. Going forward, the Group will continue to keep a
close eye on the appropriate ways to apply such measures.

Moreover, in order to diversify the income stream of the Group, the
Group has started exploring new business opportunities in the
business of construction and related materials to ASEAN countries
since the second quarter of 2020. The Directors are of the view that,
the expansion into the construction and related materials business
would bring more stable revenue to the Group, as the sales of
construction materials is less affected by the COVID-19 pandemic
and the US-China trade war.

Nevertheless, to confront the external uncertainties, we are closely
monitoring our existing business operations and the possible impacts
brought by the COVID-19 pandemic, and taking appropriate actions
to tackle such impacts. On production side, measures are taken to
make sure the impact on the production and shipment is mitigated as
much as possible, such as more comprehensive planning on
production schedules with suppliers and the logistics of raw materials
and finished goods. On customer side, our team is following up
proactively with our major customers via electronical means, in order
to minimize the impact on the sales orders at our best endeavours.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWRDN

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the Listing, after deducting the actual
underwriting commission and expenses paid by the Company in
connection thereto, were approximately HK$32.2 million (the Actual
Net Proceeds”). The Company intends to utilise the Actual Net
Proceeds according to the section headed “Statement of Business
Objectives and Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus.

The table below sets out an adjusted allocation of the Actual Net
Proceeds, the actual usage of the Actual Net Proceeds and the
unutilised Actual Net Proceeds as at 31 December 2020.

Adjusted
allocation of

/8

% EWAIRR

FrEIEAR
KNBRAARERF LN aEEe RAX
TEFRE4) 5 32,200,0008 T ([ B
BRATISRRIEFEE]) - ARFHRBEHERER %
BREBARMEHIERR] —HBRBERME
FRIEFEE o

Actual usage
of the Actual
Net Proceeds

as at

=4

1=K

TREHNN2020F 12 A 31 HNEB IS8T
B EHEESE - BT
MABBERATSHIBFE -

BFENERAR

Unutilised
Actual Net
Proceeds as at

the Actual Net 31 December 31 December
Business strategies as set out in the Prospectus Proceeds 2020 2020
%2020 &
12331 8K 2020 &
BERE BEBRE 12831 8K
RIEFEN FIEREN R RABER
BRERFTE LR RERDE BERAR FABRRESE
1) Continue our growth by solidifying our relationship with
existing customers and exploring new customers 3.3 1.7 1.6
FREFRRMMERE TP OBERMABN S PLTE
g
) Set up a new showroom to showcase
our product offerings 17.5 17.5 -
BRI EUNRRKMNERES
©)) Strengthen our design and development capabilities to
develop new design collections 2.2 2.2 -
DnsRFAPIEY RR AT M I 35 Bk ) DA R BB AR AT 51
4) Enhance our quality control process 0.8 0.8 -
RARMAE S HBIE
5) Repay bank borrowings 5.2 52 -
ERIRITIER
6) Fund general working capital needs 3.2 3.2 -
BN—REEESHSE
Total 32.2 30.6 1.6
“aEt
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBNWR DM

USE OF PROCEEDS (Continued)

The actual usage of the Actual Net Proceeds for solidifying
relationship with existing customers and exploring new customers is
delayed by the global travelling restrictions as a result of the
COVID-19 outbreak, which severely hindered the visits to our
overseas customers and suspended many trade fairs and exhibitions.
The unutilised Actual Net Proceeds is placed in a licensed bank in
Hong Kong. For the unutilised Actual Net Proceeds up to 31
December 2020, the Company intends to use them in the same
manner as disclosed in the section headed “Statement of Business
Objectives and Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus. Subject to the
progress of the lift of the global travelling restrictions, the Company
expects to utilise approximately HK$0.8 million by 31 December 2021
and HK$0.8 million by 31 December 2022 for solidifying relationship
with existing customers and exploring new customers.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s operations
were generally financed through an internally generated cash flows
and borrowings from banks. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
our current and expected liquidity requirements and our relationship
with banks to ensure the maintenance of sufficient reserves of cash
and funding to meet the liquidity requirements in both short and long
run.

As at 31 December 2020, the total equity of the Group was HK$57.5
million (31 December 2019: HK$62.5 million). The Group’s cash and
cash equivalent as at 31 December 2020 was HK$6.0 million (31
December 2019: HK$30.5 million). The Group’s bank borrowings as
at 31 December 2020 was HK$32.3 million (31 December 2019:
HK$10.3 million). Our working capital represented by the net current
assets as at 31 December 2020 was HK$23.6 million (31 December
2019: HK$26.3 million). Our current ratio was 1.6 times as at 31
December 2020, decreased from 2.8 times as at 31 December 2019.
Such decrease in working capital and current ratio was mainly
attributable to the combined effect of (i) higher trade receivables and
trade deposits paid, and (ii) higher trade payables and bank
borrowings. Our trade receivables turnover days were relatively stable
at 47.6 days and 46.2 days for the year ended 31 December 2019
and 2020, respectively. Our trade payables turnover days were 27.3
days and 10.9 days for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2020,
respectively, which were both within the credit periods offered by our
suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERB Wk DM

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES (Continued)

The decrease in trade payables turnover days was mainly attributable
to the higher trade payables balances as at 31 December 2018 as a
result of the increase in the cost of sales which drove up our trade
payables turnover days for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Our gearing ratio (calculated based on bank borrowings divided by
total equity) was 56.2% as at 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: 16.5%). Such increase was due to the increase in the bank
borrowings for trade finance purpose during the year.

Based on the above analysis, coupled with sufficient cash and bank
balances, our strong and sound financial position offers adequate
liguidity and financial resources to meet our working capital
requirements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segmental information is presented for the Group as disclosed on
note 6 of the financial statements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total number of
eight full-time employees and engaged three external design
consultants (31 December 2019: nine full-time employees and three
external design consultants). The staff costs of the Group (including
Directors’ remuneration, employees’ salaries, wages, other benefits
and contribution to defined contribution retirement plan) for the year
ended 31 December 2020 were approximately HK$4.4 million (2019:
HK$4.8 million).

Our remuneration package includes basic salary, bonuses and
allowances. We review the performance of our employees regularly,
and the review outcome is used for the employees’ salary review and
promotion appraisal. We have set up a competitive remuneration
system that links a portion of our employees’ compensation to the
performance of our business in order to provide incentives to our
employees to strive for better results.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBNWR DM

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had not made any
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures (2019: Nil).

COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have significant capital
commitments (31 December 2019: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not make
any significant investments.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have any plan for material investments or capital
assets as at 31 December 2020.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEENERFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ko Sin Yun (B#E0) (“Mr. Ko”), aged 59, is the chairman of
the Board and an executive Director of the Group. Mr. Ko was
appointed as our executive Director and chairman of the Board on 19
January 2017 and 8 July 2017 respectively. He is the father of Mr. Ko
Man Ho (“Mr. Morris Ko”). He is primarily responsible for overseeing
overall management, business development strategic planning of the
Group. He has been the director of Vision Garments Limited (“Vision
Garments”) and Market Gala Limited (“Market Gala”) since 22
March 2010 and 20 March 2010, respectively.

Mr. Ko has more than 20 years of managerial and entrepreneurial
experience. He founded the Group in March 2010. Mr. Ko has been
involved in the trading business in Hong Kong since 1998. He is the
founder and a director of Silverise Electronic Limited ($R%E 7 AR
A7), a company incorporated in Hong Kong in February 1988 and
principally engaged in the trading of electronic components in Hong
Kong. Mr. Ko is also the director of Azima International Company
Limited (FANBEAEBRAF]), a private company in Hong Kong with
its principal business activity being property investments. Mr. Ko
obtained a bachelor’s degree of engineering in electronics engineering
from Chung Yuan Christian University in Taiwan in June 1983.

Mr. Ko Man Ho (53X ), aged 31 was appointed as our executive
Director and chief executive officer on 8 July 2017 and 1 January
2017, respectively. He is the son of Mr. Ko. He is primarily responsible
for the overall management and administration of the business
operation of the Group.

He has been a director of Vision Garments since 15 May 2017. Mr.
Morris Ko joined Vision Garments as merchandiser in August 2010. In
April 2014, Mr. Morris Ko’s employment with Vision Garments was
transferred to Meridian Industries Limited (“Meridian”) and he worked
for Meridian as merchandiser. In view of the business needs of Vision
Garments, Mr. Morris Ko had been designated by Meridian to work
for Vision Garments exclusively and had been in charge of our sales
and sourcing team from December 2014 until December 2016. Since
January 2017, Mr. Morris Ko was again employed by Vision Garments
and has acted as our chief executive officer. Mr. Morris Ko graduated
from Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Kap Yan Directors’ College in
Hong Kong in May 2007 .
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEEBNERFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Cheng Ka Wing (% %) (“Mr. Cheng”), aged 39, was appointed
as our executive Director on 8 July 2017. He is also the compliance
officer of the Group. Mr. Cheng is primarily responsible for the
supervision of the Group’s financial reporting, financial planning,
treasury and internal control. In January 2017, Mr. Cheng joined the
Group as the chief financial officer of Vision Garments. He has been a
director of Vision Garments since 1 June 2017.

Mr. Cheng has accumulated over 10 years of experience mainly in
asset management, corporate finance and treasury management.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Cheng worked at Standard Chartered
Bank (Hong Kong) Limited from November 2006 to September 2007
as an analyst, at BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch as an analyst from
October 2007 to February 2013, at Meridian and Wisewing Business
Centre Limited from August 2013 to September 2014 as chief
investment officer, and at New Rise Construction Engineering Limited
from October 2014 to December 2016 as financial controller.

Mr. Cheng graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor’s degree in social sciences in December 2003, and from the
University of Durham with a master’s degree in financial management
in January 2006. He is a CFA® charterholder since September 2010.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEENERFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. To King Yan, Adam (#:51=) (“Mr. To”), aged 61, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 16 April 2018. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing the management independently
and providing independent judgement on the issues of strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

Mr. To worked at the Legal Department of Hong Kong (currently the
Department of Justice of Hong Kong) as Assistant Crown Counsel
from September 1984 to September 1986 and as Crown Counsel
from September 1986 to February 1987. Mr. To joined K.B. Chau &
Co., a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong, since February 1987 and is
currently a partner of this firm with his practice focusing on
conveyancing and litigation. Mr. To graduated from the University of
London with a bachelor of laws degree in 1983. Mr. To has been a
practising solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since 1986. In
addition, he is also qualified to practise law in England and Wales and
Australia, and is a China Appointed Attesting Officer. Since August
2009, Mr. To has been an independent non-executive director of
Rykadan Capital Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2288). Mr. To was an independent
non-executive director of Shen You Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8377) from
November 2017 to September 2018.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEEBNERFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Kwok Chee Kin (Z87&ER) (“Mr. Kwok”), aged 61, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 16 April 2018. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing the management independently
and providing independent judgement on the issues of strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

Mr. Kwok is a physiotherapist with more than thirty years’ experience.
He worked as a physiotherapist at the Medical and Health
Department of Hong Kong (currently the Department of Health of
Hong Kong) from August 1982 to December 1985. From January
1987 to February 1994, he worked in Australia. He worked part-time
or full time at various hospitals and clinics including Hampton
Rehabilitation Hospital, Box Hill Hospital, Royal Children Hospital and
Medical Center in Ford Motor Company, and established his own
clinic, the Victoria Sports Spinal Physiotherapy and Acupuncture
Clinics. In February 1994, he moved back to Hong Kong and
established the ASA Physiotherapy Clinics. Mr. Kwok was also the
team physiotherapist for various sports teams in Australia and in
Hong Kong. He was invited to be the team physiotherapist for the
Hong Kong Olympic Committee, at 1996 Summer Olympic Games.
He was also a physiotherapist for the 12th Asian Games held in 1994,
the 2nd East Asian Games held in 1997, the 13th Asian Games held
in 1998 and the 3rd East Asian Games held in 2001. Mr. Kwok
graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a professional diploma in
physiotherapy in 1982, The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
master of sciences degree in 2006 and the Hong Kong Baptist
University with a bachelor of Chinese medicine degree in 2008. He is
currently a registered physiotherapist and a registered Chinese
medicine practitioner.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Chan Kim Sun (BR&/£2) (“Mr. Chan”), aged 39, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 16 April 2018. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing the management independently
and providing independent judgement on the issues of strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

From October 2004 to March 2010, Mr. Chan joined HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited with his latest position as an audit manager.
From August 2011 to September 2014, Mr. Chan served as finance
controller and from September 2012 to September 2014 as company
secretary of China Infrastructure Investment Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 600). Mr. Chan
is currently a non-practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and is a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan graduated from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree
in business administration majoring in accounting and finance in
November 2003. Since December 2015, Mr. Chan has been an
independent non-executive director of Virscend Education Company
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1565). Since February 2021, Mr. Chan has been an
independent non-executive director of Hong Kong Resources
Holdings Company Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2882). Since January 2019, Mr. Chan
has been the company secretary of WMCH Global Investment
Limited, the shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 8208).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Lam Hau Chu (#I52k) (“Ms. Lam”), aged 55, was appointed
as our design manager on 1 January 2017. She is primarily
responsible for overseeing the product design and development of
the Group.

Ms. Lam has been working in the apparel industry for more than 30
years. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Lam worked as merchandiser at
Meridian from April 1989 to August 2010. Ms. Lam joined the Group
in September 2010 as designer of Vision Garments. In April 2015,
pursuant to a management arrangement with Meridian, our related
party, for the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2016 (the
“Management Arrangement”), Ms. Lam’s employment was
transferred to Meridian, which then re-assigned Ms. Lam to work at
Vision Garments as designer and in charge of our design team. As
the Management Arrangement was terminated in December 2016,
Ms. Lam was again employed by Vision Garments as design manager
on 1 January 2017. Ms. Lam graduated from Kit Sam Middle School

in 1984.

Ms. Lo Wai Han (E£) (“Ms. Lo”), aged 63, was appointed as
our quality control manager on 1 January 2017. She is primarily
responsible for overseeing the quality control aspects of the Group’s
business.

Ms. Lo has over 25 years of garment quality control experience in the
apparel industry. Ms. Lo had worked at Meridian as quality control
staff since August 1992. From December 2014 to December 2016,
Ms. Lo had been designated by Meridian to work for Vision Garments
exclusively as quality control supervisor in charge of our quality
control team. Since January 2017, Ms. Lo has been employed by
Vision Garments as quality control manager.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to maintaining and achieving
high corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard the
interests of shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its
business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and
accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules.

The Board is of the view that during the year ended 31 December
2020, the Company has complied with all the code provisions as set
out in the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect of
securities transaction by directors (the “Required Standard”).

Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Required Standard
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company has also extended the coverage of the Required
Standard adoption to the senior management of the Company who
are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company (the “Relevant Employees”). No
incident of non-compliance of the Required Standard by the Relevant
Employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and should take decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time performing them.

Board Composition
The Board currently comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ko Sin Yun ((Chairman of the Board and Chairman of
the Nomination Committee)
Mr. Ko Man Ho (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheng Ka Wing (Chief Financial Officer and Compliance Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. To King Yan, Adam (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and Member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)

Mr. Kwok Chee Kin (Member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Chan Kim Sun (Chairman of the Audit Committee and Member of
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 18 to 23 of this annual report.

The relationships between the Directors are disclosed in the
respective Director’s biography under the section “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on page 18 to 23 of this
annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr.
Ko and Mr. Morris Ko respectively. The Chairman provides leadership
and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the
Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s
business development and daily management and operations
generally.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the
view that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company with an initial term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date subject to termination by
either party, giving at least three months’ notice in writing.

According to the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”), one-third of the Directors for the time being (if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. The retiring Directors should be
eligible for re-election at the relevant AGM. In addition, any new
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the first general meeting of shareholders after his/her
appointment, whereas any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following AGM. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company, and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement
on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of the
Company are delegated to the management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Continual Professional Development of Directors
Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and
obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and
reading material on relevant topics would be provided to Directors
where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.

The record of continuous professional development relating to
director’s duties and regulatory and business development that have
been received by the Directors during the year ended 31 December
2020 and up to date of this report are summarised as follows:
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Director

=)

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Ko Sin Yun P EN A&
Mr. Ko Man Ho B A
Mr. Cheng Ka Wing ERRTE
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUIHITEE
Mr. To King Yan, Adam MERCEE
Mr. Kwok Chee Kin SPEER A
Mr. Chan Kim Sun BoR R 24 55 A
Note:

Types of Training

A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings,
seminars, conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and
relevant publications
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
Shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set
out under “Corporate Information” on page 3 of this annual report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim Sun (Chairman), Mr. To King Yan,
Adam and Mr. Kwok Chee Kin.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are, among others, to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
external auditor, review the financial information, oversee the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management systems and
audit process, and perform other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee held
four meetings to review the quarterly, interim and annual financial
results, audit planning and reports, risk management and internal
control systems and significant issues on the financial reporting,
operational and compliance controls.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor once without the
presence of the executive Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. To King Yan, Adam (Chairman), Mr.
Chan Kim Sun and Mr. Kwok Chee Kin.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary
functions of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and
structure relating to all Directors and senior management of the
Group, reviewing performance-based remuneration, and ensuring
none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 31
December 2020 to review the remuneration policy and structure of
the Company and the remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management and other related matters.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band are
set out in note 12 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director,
namely Mr. Ko Sin Yun (Chairman), and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. To King Yan, Adam and Mr. Chan
Kim Sun.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal
duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, and selecting or making
recommendations on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning
board diversity as set out in the Company’s board diversity policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board,
where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended 31
December 2020 to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board. The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
of the Board and is available on the website of the Company. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will
review annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to ensure that
the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In relation to reviewing
and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee is
committed to diversity at all levels and will consider a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, experience, expertise,
qualifications, skills and knowledge as well as independence of the
Board.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth and
is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection practices
at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately structured
so that a diverse range of candidates are considered.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy on a
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a director nomination policy (the
“Director Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria
and process and the Board succession planning considerations in
relation to nomination and appointment of Directors of the Company
and aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and the
continuity of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

° Character and integrity;

° Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

° Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age
(18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service;

° Requirements of Independent Non-executive Directors on the
Board and independence of the proposed Independent Non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

° Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest to

discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Director Nomination Policy (Continued)

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of
Directors at general meetings.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of
Directors at general meetings.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which sets out the approach to maintain a balance between meeting
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend pay-out
ratio. The declaration of dividends is subject to the discretion of the
Board. Any declaration of final dividend by the Company shall also be
subject to the approval of the shareholders in a shareholders’
meeting.

The Directors may recommend a payment of dividends in the future
after taking into account the Group’s operations and earnings, capital
requirements and surplus, general financial condition, contractual
restrictions, capital expenditure and future development requirements,
shareholders’ interests and other factors which they may deem
relevant at such time. Any declaration and payment as well as the
amount of the dividends will be subject to constitutional documents,
any applicable laws and regulations, including the Cayman
Companies Law. Historical dividend distributions are not indicative of
the future dividend distribution. Any distributable profits that are not
distributed in any given year will be retained and available for
distribution in subsequent years. To the extent profits are distributed
as dividends, such portion of profits will not be available to be
reinvested in the Group’s operations.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board had reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Required Standard and the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Regular board meetings should be held at least four times a year
involving active participation, either in person or through electronic
means of communication, of a majority of Directors. Four regular
board meetings were held and one AGM was held for the year ended
31 December 2020.

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the table below:

EENZEEENEHERE

THESSSRRIFELBTNN R R
REYEZHEANBREFBEMHFNEGLH -
EHZE2020F 12AG1ALLFE - BT THAES
CEHRM—ARRRAFRE -

HZE2020F 12 A31HIEFE  SE=HFES
EREERECSEUNARRARERRENHE
FEERH I T K ¢

Attendance/Number of Meetings

W/ REES
Annual Other
Audit Remuneration  Nomination general general
Name of Director Board  committee = committee  committee meeting meeting
RRBF EfR R
Eupg EX® EHZEE FHERE REZEE N1 PN -
Mr. Ko Sin Yun BHHEE 44 44 111 171 171 11
Mr. Ko Man Ho BXREE 44 44 111 1/1 1/1 11
Mr. Cheng Ka Wing EREEE 4/4 474 11 1/1 1 11
Mr. To King Yan, Adam gLt 4/4 474 11 1/1 1/1 11
Mr. Kwok Cheg Kin PERLEE 4/4 4/4 il il il N
Mr. Chan Kim Sun BRas s & 4/4 4/4 1/ 1/1 1/ 1

Apart from regular board meetings, the Chairman also held one
meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of executive Directors for the year ended 31 December
2020.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted a series of internal control
policies, procedures and programs designed to provide reasonable
assurance for achieving objectives including effective and efficient
operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

The ultimate goal of the Company’s risk management process is to
identify and focus on the issues in its business operations that create
impediments to the Company’s success. The risk management
process starts with identifying the major risks associated with the
corporate strategies, goals and objectives. The key process points in
the risk management include:

° Identify:  The Company identifies current and emerging risks
in its business operations and categorises those
risks into a reasonable profile based on timeframe,
likelihood, intensity and impact severity. The
Company establishes four risk categories, including
strategic risks, financial risks, operating risks and
legal risks.

° Assess:  The Company assesses and prioritises risks so that
the most important risks can be identified and dealt
with. Based on both qualitative and quantitative
analyses, the Company prioritises risks in terms of
likelihood and impact severity.

° Mitigate:  Based on the assessment of (i) the probability and
impact severity of the risks and (i) cost and benefit
of the mitigation plans, the Company chooses the
appropriate option for dealing with risks, including
risk elimination by suspending the associated
business activities, risk reduction by adopting
appropriate control measures, risk transfer by
outsourcing or purchasing insurance policies, and
risk acceptance by choosing to accept risks of low
priority.

° Measure: The Company measures its risk management by
determining if changes have been implemented and
if changes are effective. In the event of any
weakness in control, the Company follows up by
adjusting its risk management measures and
reporting material issues to the Directors.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

All divisions conducted internal control assessment regularly to
identify risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and
various aspects including key operational and financial processes,
regulatory compliance and information security.

The management, in coordination with division/department heads,
assessed the likelihood of risk occurrence, provided treatment plans,
and monitored the risk management progress, and reported to the
Audit Committee and the Board on all findings and the effectiveness
of the systems.

The Company has engaged external professional firm for providing
the internal audit function and performing independent annual review
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
internal audit function examined key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls and provided its
findings and recommendations for improvement to the Audit
Committee. An assessment on our internal control systems has been
examined by the external professional firm during the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Board therefore considered the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are effective and adequate.

Whistleblowing procedures are in place to facilitate employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters of
the Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a
general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior
management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorised access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 72 to 79 of this annual
report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the current external auditor of the Company,
Yongtuo Fuson CPA Limited, in respect of audit services and non-
audit services for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
HK$0.4 million. An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external
auditors of the Company, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

ESHEMBRRNES

EERRBEEEETHREARBIEE2020F 12
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EXWTABEMETREE AR RRER LN
BREARENEHLEREENEATEE R
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BE A<

HE2020F 12 A1 ALEFE - BEEFT RS RIE
FEtRFAA AR E RN RS EEE
TR AT B BR A B A 8B € /400,000 7T ©
HE2020F 12 AG1 ALEFE - BEEFT RS IE
BT RIS AN A RIIMBAZ B Z OB & B 5T
#3aoT

Fees paid/

Services Category Payable
AR5 8 5 B ERRA
(HK$ million)

BEBT

Audit Services AT RS 0.4
Non-audit Services FEEAT IR -
0.4

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tam Chun Wai Edwin of Noble Partners CPA Company, an
external service provider, has been engaged by the Company as the
company secretary since 4 May 2019. Mr. Tam’s primary contact
person at the Company is Mr. Cheng, executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company. Mr. Tam also confirmed that he has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

38  VISION INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2020

NEIME

H2019F5 A4  IMNBRBHERRKESS
MBI EEEECBARRIZE AR R
£ AEETEARANEZHIEABEABNT
EERVBREELE - RAEENER HE
2020 12 AB1 BIEFE - thEEZ T PR15/)
IRF BV ABRA B 25531 o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREARE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with shareholders through various
communication channels and a shareholders’ communication policy
is in place to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

According to article 58 of the Articles, any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director of the Company at a general
meeting, pursuant to article 85 of the Articles, the Shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting shall send a written notice, duly signed by the
Shareholder, of his/her intention to propose such person for election
and also a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/her
willingness to be elected. These notices should be lodged at the
Company’s head office or the office of the Company’s branch share
registrar. The period for lodgement of such notices shall commence
on the day after the despatch of the notice of such general meeting
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The
Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: 3/F, China United Plaza, 1002-1008 Tai Nan West
Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors)

Email: contactus@vision-garments.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and other general
meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has not
made any changes to its Articles. An up-to-date version of the
Company’s Articles is also available on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website.

Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a shareholders’ communication policy to
ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a policy on payment of dividends
pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code that has become
effective from 1 January 2019.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Preparation basis and scope

Vision International Holdings Limited (the “Company” together with
its subsidiaries, hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) is pleased to
present our Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) to provide an overview of the Group’s management of
significant issues affecting the operation, including environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) issues.

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 20 of The GEM
Listing Rules — “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) and summarises the ESG
performance of the Group. The Group has complied with the
disclosure requirements of the “comply or explain” provisions set out
in the ESG Reporting Guide and strives to optimise and improve the
disclosure of certain key performance indicator (“KPIs”).

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and
reporting. The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
Group’s ESG-related risks and ensuring that appropriate and effective
ESG risk management and internal control systems are in place.

This Report illustrates the Group’s policies and performance regarding
the environmental and social aspects during the reporting period from
1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period”).

The information contained herein is sourced from official documents
and statistics of the Group, as well as the combined control,
management and operations information provided by the subsidiaries
in accordance with the Group’s relevant policies. The ESG Report is
prepared and published in both English and Chinese. In the event of
contradiction or inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.
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INTRODUCTION

The principal activities of the Group are (i) sales of apparel products
with the provision of SCM services to customers; and (ii) the provision
of agency services for construction and related materials. The Group
will continue in assessing the impacts of its business on the major
environmental, social and governance aspects and to include in the
ESG report.

The Group recognises the importance of sustainable development.
Sustainability is crucial for the Group’s growth in order to achieve
business excellence and enhance long-term competitiveness. The
Group has established and implemented various policies to manage
and monitor the risks related to environment, employment, operating
practices and community. Details of the management approaches to
sustainable development of different areas are illustrated in this ESG
Report.

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Group opens up communication with its stakeholders, including
government, shareholder, investors, employees and consumers,
through utilising different channels as listed the table below. Through
the stakeholders’ engagement, the Group understands the
expectations and concerns of stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained
through these channels allow the Group to further formulate the
sustainable development strategy.
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Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel Measures
BHE HE BHERE £t
Government — Tocomply withthelaws —  On-site inspectionsand —  Operated, managed and
—  Proper tax payment checks paid taxes according to
—  Promote regional —  Research and discussion laws and regulations
economic development through work —  Strengthened safety
and employment conferences, work management
reports preparation and  —  Accepted the
submission for approval Government’s supervision,
— Annual reports inspection and evaluation
—  Website — Actively undertook social
responsibilities
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Stakeholder
BnE

Expectation

HE

BFHhESHEE

Engagement channel

SHRRE

Measures

Shareholders and
Investors

R RITEE

Low risk

Return on the investment
Information disclosure
and transparency
Protection of interests
and fair treatment of
shareholders

e

R E B

BRI ENERE
RIEHE RS R AT HFRR

Annual general meeting
and other shareholders’
meetings

Annual reports, circulars

and announcements
Newsletters

Meeting with investors
and analysts

BERBEERE MEA
BREZ

FH - BIERE
#ETS

B EE RO EE

Issued notices of general
meetings and proposed
resolutions according to
laws and regulations
Disclosed company’s
information by publishing
announcements/circulars
and periodic reports during
the year

Carried out different forms
of investor activities with
an aim to improve
investors’ recognition

Held results briefing once
Disclosed company
contact details on website
and in reports and ensured
all communication
channels are available and
effective
REER AR BEHRRER
gRERRHARE
RERBBTIERS BEK
MEHMERBEQARER
ETTREAMREER
&) LR EENRA
BT —IREBEWmE

PAAB L K ¥R 5 R 4R EE 1 A
EERFBURRMAER
REFAREK
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

BFHhESHEE

Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel Measures
FHE HE SHERE £t
Employees —  Safeguard the rightsand —  Conference —  Provided a healthy and
interests of employees —  Training, seminars, safe working environment
—  Working environment briefing sessions —  Developed a fair
—  Career development —  Cultural and sport mechanism for promotion
opportunities activities —  Established labour unions
—  Self-actualization —  Newsletters at all levels to provide
—  Health and safety — Intranet and emails communication platforms
for employees
—  Cared for employees by
helping those in need
—  Organising employee
activities
B8 —  REESREMNRERE - B&E - RHEREZZ2HIIERE
-  I{FRE — B HEe - fame - BURTREFE
- BEZERe —  X{tKEEEH - RUBRIgRESREE
- BHER — HER mYa
- BERZZ - RNEKEB - BLREDBTENEE
— HBEBREH
Customers —  Safe and high-quality —  Website, brochures, —  Strengthened quality
products annual reports management to ensure
—  Stable relationship —  Email and customer stable production and
— Information transparency service hotline smooth transportation
—  Integrity —  Feedback forms —  Entered into long-term
—  Business ethics —  Regular meetings strategic cooperation
agreements
S - ZERKEEEM — @ NMBTF o FR — NRESEEUERETEL
-  IBEBR — BEREPRBERR ERIEGESR
- BHEHE - EBRE®E — RN RHEREFEHE
- B2 - TEHEH
—  E¥ER
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B R RREARE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT BEEMFMG
In the year, the Group undertakes its annual materiality assessment  F R @ REBEMETEHFEEEMTE - @5 RHE
exercise. This involves conducting interviews and/or surveys with ~ WHEBRSMNEBIS D EEITRI A S SHBE - ARSI

N

internal and external stakeholders to identify the most significant HHEXBREENGE  RERMEGTR
operating, environmental and social impacts towards its business.

Materiality matrix for Environmental, Social

and Governance Aspects

oo |37 S 1 A fara\VANG -0+
R g RERHENER B
o 8,9,10,11,13,14,
-t 15,16
(O] 5 o
O
e 6,17
<
D A ¢
X I
© *HHH 3,7,12
—-—
N - 3 [
o &
= N 1,2,4,5
B on 2 [
o 5
S i 18
T &=
S :ﬁ 1 )
o
£ 0
0 1 2 3 4 5
Importance to business
HEBNEZM
Environmental Social Operating practices
BiE HE REER
1. Greenhouse gas emissions 8. Employee welfare 14.  Product responsibility
1. RERBHEW 8. BIEH 14, EmEME
2. Waste 9. Labour standards 15. Intellectual property
2. EED 9.  HBIER| 15, HIFERE
3. Energy consumption 10. Occupational health and safety ~ 16. Customer privacy
3. RUREHE 10. BiEEER&EZE 16. EFMLE
4. Water consumption 11.  Training and development 17.  Anti-corruption
4. FKEB 1. FIIRERE 17. RES
5. Utilization of energy resources 12.  Anti-child labour and forced 18.  Community investment
labour
5. BURERA 12. BIEET REHIST 18. (REE
0. Use of packaging material 13.  Supply chain management
6. BEMEMEAR 13, HEEER
7. Environmental impact of business
7. EBYHRBENEE
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R HERERERS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECT

Emission

Given the nature of the operations, the Group poses less negative
impact to the environment than most traditional industries. The Group
is not aware of any material environmental liability risk or compliance
costs. However, the Group is committed to continuously improving
our business environmental sustainability. In striving to do the right
things as a company, the Group recognises that it has a responsibility
to reduce the impact of the operations and be accountable for the
resources and materials it uses each day.

The Group’s businesses are mostly carried out locally in office. During
the year, the total floor area coverage of the Group was around 382
m?. The Group has encompassed the general approach towards
controlling environmental impacts of office activities. The Group’s
most significant environmental impacts are greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
emissions from electricity consumption, such as from the air-
conditioning system, the lighting system, computers, printers and

REEM

BER

mwxﬁmﬁg AEEHRENAEPZEIR
KRB EHRITE - AEBL THBEMERRE
BERBEABRKA o Rifi - AEBBAORTEH
RITEBORFEAHEN - (ER—MAR - B
NEHERZ 8K AEERREFEERIE
BEELANFZEVHERMANERIIHEE

AEBRNEBRBONRBOPREHETT - F
N AEBEMBREERNO/I2F K - Ak
B 2 BRE— AR U7 S RIE B 9 A A B IRIR A
Mg AEBEREENREFESRMAENM
RHAERE((RERR])  WXBZHRE
B RAARS B STEI R EMBEORE -

REEE A MAK R TP RE R BEY) - TRBEL

other office equipment. The Group does not engage in any discharge ~AEMEEFEEMREEZHEEY - AR FHEEER
of waste into water and land, and there was no significant generation & - A& E 2 & [ ERE R | — & At eI e
of hazardous wastes and non-hazardous wastes. In line with the aim 4985 IR 3B LA A8 = A BER -
to minimise emissions, the Group has implemented energy saving
practices which are mentioned in the session of “Use of Resources”
to reduce the GHG emissions.
The GHG emission during the Reporting Period is as follow: RRERRMRZERBHERAT -
Table 1 GHG emission E1BREREEEK
Equivalent CO,
Scope emission (kg)
—HmEEHER
i) (F=)
Scope 1 #3051 Nil 42
Scope 2 #iks2 28,618
Total a=t 28,618
75 kg/m?
Intensity mE F5,/ K
Note: gz
The calculation of GHG is based on the “Corporate Accounting and Reporting  REREDNEBEEREREZTETN [bEGHE
Standard” from greenhouse gas protocol. WERE] FTHESF ﬁ
Scope 1: Direct emission from vehicle that owned by the Group #Wig1: REAKEMEEEHNEEN
Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased electricity — #852: RNEBEFEMINEENAE LN REER
consumed by the Group
Scope 3: Other indirect emission is optional disclosure that the corresponding ~ #E53 :  JEARSEFTIEHI O At EHIN R ELE

emission is not controlled by the Group
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R HERERRS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECT (Continued)

Use of Resources

The Group places high priority on the efficient use of resources. The
major resources used by the Group are electricity, water and paper.
Due to our business nature, no packaging material is used. The
Group strives to improve the efficient use of natural resources, such
as minimising waste/emissions and implementing effective recycling
program. Practical measures are implemented as follows:

Electricity

Electricity saving measures are encouraged. Electrical appliances are
required to be set as energy saving mode where possible. For
computers, the automatic sleep mode is scheduled to be 20 minutes
or less. The room temperature should be set at a range from 20°C to
26°C. Also, power supply should be switched off when they are not in
use. Preference will be given to office equipment with relatively high
energy efficiency.

The energy consumption during the Reporting Period is as follows:

Table 2 Energy Consumption

REEHE®

EREEA

AEESEERANERALRE  AEEFERANE
BERAEN KRR ERBPMOEL M
- BT EER AR AEES HIE
AEBRABRNE: fINEERLESR
W, B R BT 2 B R B B o AR
EREFS BRI T

BB REREP A A BN - REERE T8
R ABENBER I - BRI 20 23BN B EE A ER
B ENREERERBR20EERMK26E
Z[E o o - BB E AR R - ARk
BEEAERMAEB =M AR

RBEHANEEREEENT
R2EFHFER

Consumption

Energy (kWh)
HIEE

HER (FEB)
Electricity BN 56,114
Energy Intensity BERTE 146.9 KWh/m?
TEE, 77K
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECT (Continued) REEH®)
Use of Resources (Continued) BIRE B @)
Water A7k

The impact of freshwater use is relatively insignificant for the Group as ~ ANEE KL RIS F B L1 W AIGER BN
its businesses are services-focused. The Group did not encounter — ZE ¥R K o ANEEFEKEUE B AR LI &3 E|
any problems in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. Water rate T & - KEW A EF N —EHFLBER © B
charges do not form a separate item in the rent, yet the Group  AEBSHENE TRARERK  fIESKES
encourages staff to reduce water wastage, such as, by not running — JZEA~—EFTFI/KEEH °

water taps while cleaning in the pantry.

The water consumption during the Reporting Period is as follows: R EHEOFEKENT
Table 3 Water Consumption RIFEKE
Consumption
Water (md)
HAEE
X (ZF3K)
Water 7K 166
Intensity =E 0.44 m®/m?
SRR

48  VISION INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2020



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R HERERRS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECT (Continued)

Use of Resources (Continued)

Paper

Reduction in paper use indirectly reduces the overall GHG emission.
The Group has been taking various steps to reduce paper
consumption such as to reduce the use of paper by printing or
photocopying on both sides of paper, where applicable and to
encourage the employees to use suitable font size/shrinkage mode to
minimise pages, if possible. Besides, electronic media is
recommended for circulation/communication, to minimise using

paper.
During the Reporting Period, the paper consumption was 61 kg.

During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed/generated no
significant hazardous waste, non-hazardous waste, and packaging
materials due to its business nature. The Group is not aware of any
material violation in all applicable environmental laws and regulations.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group raises staff’'s awareness on environmental issues through
education and training and enlist employees’ support in improving the
Group’s performance, promote environmental awareness amongst
the customers, business partners and shareholders and support
community activities in relation to environmental protection and
sustainability and evaluate regularly and monitor past and present
business activities impacting upon health, safety and environmental
matters. With the integration of policies mentioned in sections
“Emission” and “Use of Resource”, the Group strives to minimise the
impacts to the environment and natural resources.

SOCIAL ASPECTS

Employment

We consider our employees to be our valuable assets and therefore
attach great importance to our recruitment. We recruit employees
possessing necessary skills and creative talents to help execute and
achieve our business strategies and objectives. The Group assesses
the available human resources on a continuous basis and will
determine whether additional personnel are required to cope with the
business development of the Group. The Group’s staff policy book
sets out our standards for compensation and dismissal, promotion,
working hours, rest periods and other benefits and welfare.

REEHE®

BRER @

e
AORREER O REBEAEIN - AEED
RS B R RN - e A E RIS,
T (ER) AL RS REBEBETTIER
TEREYTE, GREXAREROER - It
Sh + B PR EEEE(E B T T (SR, E T -
AR B R -

RREHRE - ARBERR61 T o

RBEHE ENXHBHE AEELER
A/ ELEREREEERY BEEREVREEM
£ REBA T MEEMNRERZRABERRE
ERFOEREOER

REMRAARER

AEBBBHE MEIARTEITHREEEN
Bl UBKREENSUARARNEENKRE -
AEF  EBAERHMRRERRREH X
HHRBERABRRLAIKEZRRNEDHETX
o ARESFEIERBERRBEERE
RENRFEEENEB LY - HEH [HRY )
RIERER] MEMANBRETES  £&
B N EHIRR M RABERTERNZERE
&K e

HEEE

(=

BAREERARMNEEEE  FHHEMFETEE
BRI - RATBERBMEREREIZT LR
8 BHRITRERRMNEBREMERE - X
KERSETGHAIRANERLKEEESAFEH
SMNBABNARE 2 XBER - ARENET
BERFMEINHMEBEEREE S5 TF
P8R - B R R E 5 B AR IR ©
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R HERERERS

SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

The Group entered into separate labour contracts with each of our
employees in accordance with the applicable labour laws of Hong
Kong. We have set up a competitive remuneration system that links a
portion of our employees’ compensation to the performance of our
business in order to provide incentives to our employees to strive for
better results. Our remuneration package includes basic salary,
bonuses and allowances. We place great emphasis on employee
performance in determining their remuneration. We review the
performance of our employees regularly, and the reviewed outcome
is used for the employee’s salary review and promotion appraisal.

We also maintain employees’ compensation insurance for all of our
employees as required under the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other
applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong. We operate defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes under MPF schemes
registered under the relevant laws and regulations for our employees
in Hong Kong. Contributions to such schemes are based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

During the Reporting Period, no material non-compliance regarding
employment has been brought against the Group or its employees.

Health and Safety

As we do not own or operate any manufacturing facilities, we are not
subject to any manufacturing-related occupational health, work safety
and environmental issues. As required under Hong Kong laws, we
take out employees’ compensation insurance for our employees.
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R HERERRS

SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)

Health and Safety (Continued)

The COVID-19 pandemic crisis has been putting pressure on the
Group and its employees during the Reporting Period. As part of the
COVID-19 countermeasures and to prevent the spread of the virus,
the Group has implemented stringent infection preventive measures
to protect its employees. The Group’s closely monitored the health of
its employees every day by checking their body temperature,
providing sufficient surgical masks and alcohol-based hand rub in the
offices. The Group also required its employees to consider using
other methods such as online video meeting software for interviews
or meetings. Employees are advised to wear masks and avoid
physical contact (such as shaking hands, hugging) and crowded
places when they are required to meet people or work outside in their
local community.

The occupational health and safety data during the Reporting Period
is as follows:

HEEE W)

fEREZEE

MR ERRT - COVID-10 15/ i S A 2 B 3
BEERES - AEED EHBEOBH DR
MR EE B - E/8COVID-10 8 1 2 i f) —
BARBYIHFSEE  AEEEETNERE
EMRE RPASREHESMED - RERH
BV OB BT R - AEENBRESE
EEREMITE B LR EE RS TE S
HE o BFIREEIE S AT B R AR AN
AP EE SR TR ME OB Rl 5 s (1
BF - HR) REIFHEELT -

RREHRANBERFEEZ2HIRNAT

Table 4 Health and Safety RIBEREEZE

Health and Safety Male Female
REHEZE B keg:3
Number of work-related fatalities B TERAR o8 T H) A X Nil = Nil =
Lost days due to work injury ATEEAIIERH Nil = Nil &

During the Reporting Period, no non-compliance cases were noted in
relation to laws and regulations for health and safety.

RNBEHE YEFREATTaREELTRX
BREEMAEER
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)

Development and Training

We believe that on-going development and training of our employees
is critical to our success. We are committed to employee
development and provide various training to our employees to
support their further development through education allowance to
reimburse fees of external training seminars as stated in the staff
policy book. We believe it is a win-win approach for achieving both
employee and corporate goals as a whole.

Labour Standards

The Group is fully aware that child labour and forced labour violate
fundamental human rights and also pose threat to sustainable social
and economic development. The Group strictly complies with the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
other relevant labour laws and regulations in Hong Kong. The Group
prohibits the use of child labour and forced labour. Employment
contracts and other records, documenting all relevant details of the
employees (including age) are maintained properly for verification by
relevant statutory body upon request.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with policies
and relevant laws and regulations regarding prevention of child labour
or forced labour.
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R HERERRS

SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)

Supply Chain Management

To focus our time and resources on provision of apparel SCM
services, we outsource the manufacturing of all apparel products
ordered by our customers to our suppliers in the PRC, Madagascar
and Cambodia.

Our sales and sourcing team is responsible for the overall production
management including selecting and engaging suppliers for
manufacturing of apparel products. We have adopted and
implemented policies and procedures in selecting new suppliers for
manufacturing of apparel products and monitoring their ongoing
performance. We regularly select and evaluate our suppliers, based
on a number of factors including technical capability, manufacturing
capacity, quality, reputation, timely delivery, pricing, costs and
payment terms. Besides, to determine whether to allocate production
orders to suppliers in the PRC, Madagascar or Cambodia, we
typically take into consideration of their prices, technical capabilities,
production capacities, delivery schedules and their respective
competitive strengths. Suppliers in different countries and different
regions of the PRC have their own competitive strengths. For
example, suppliers in the southern region of the PRC are equipped
with advanced manufacturing equipment and are capable of
manufacturing a wide variety of apparel products. Suppliers in the
central and northern regions of the PRC are in close proximity to raw
material supply and thereby are able to manufacture apparel products
at lower costs. For our suppliers in Madagascar and Cambodia, the
costs of manufacturing apparel products are more competitive due to
the lower labour costs in Madagascar and Cambodia, and the
exemption of import duty for exporting apparel products from
Madagascar and Cambodia to Europe.

We further evaluate such suppliers’ performance through our
inspections on apparel products. We follow up closely with our
suppliers on production and delivery schedules in order to ensure that
the finished products can be delivered in accordance with our
customers’ requirements. Thus, we believe there are no significant
environmental and social risks for our management decision on
supply chain management.

HEEE W)

i e g B 1R
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)

Product Responsibility

Quality Assurance

We maintain a quality control programme for the apparel products
throughout the production process manufactured by our suppliers,
with the view to ensuring the overall quality of the apparel products.
Our quality control team performs on-site inspections on the raw
materials to be used on the apparel products and semi-finished
products to ensure they meet the relevant specifications. In addition,
our quality control team inspects and performs laboratory tests on the
raw materials in accordance with the local and international
standards, where necessary. Our quality control team reviews such
test results and decides whether the raw materials meet our quality
requirements.

We carry out inspections on the apparel products ordered by our
customers during the production process using different inspection
methods. Before the packaging and delivery of finished products to
customers, we perform on-site quality inspections to ensure that all
finished products comply strictly with customers’ requirements and
our internal standards. If any defect is found in the finished products,
we require the suppliers to rectify the defects at no additional cost
and subsequently re-examine the reprocessed products. After
passing the final inspection, all finished products are packed for
delivery.

For our quality control measure over selection of suppliers, please
refer to aspect “Supply Chain Management” in this ESG Report for
further details.
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R HERERRS

SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Product Return Policy

The apparel products ordered by our customers are subject to final
inspections before delivery to ensure they conform with our
specifications and quality requirements. We do not have a product
return policy. However, we may return products due to quality issues
or require our suppliers to rectify any defects our customers identified
after delivery of the products. In the event that issues relating to
product return arises, we follow up closely with our customers on any
claims or requests for product return, payment refund, rectification or
price discount, and may enter into negotiations with our customers to
resolve the issue on a case-by-case basis.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not received any
products related complaints.

Data Protection

Employees are generally required to follow the confidentiality clause
as stated in the staff policy book and employment contract,
requesting employees not to disclose any trade secret or other
confidential information concerning the business or affairs of the
Group except for benefit of the Group with further authorisation.

During the Reporting Period, there were no cases of non-compliance
against products and services related laws and regulations.

Anti-Corruption

To ensure operation efficiency and employees’ development in a fair
and honest working environment, the Group has formulated
whistleblowing policy to avoid suspected corruption and provided
channel such as by letters, meetings, emails or phone calls for
employees to report suspected corruption. If there are any suspected
case related to corruption, employees are encouraged to report the
related cases through the mentioned channels. All these practical
actions not only win the trust of customers, but also enhance the
sense of belonging and fair play among our employees. The Group
has been in strict compliance with laws and regulations related to
anti-corruption.

During the Reporting Period, no legal cases regarding corrupt
practices were brought against the Group or its employees.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued) HEEM @
Product Responsibility (Continued) Emafuw
Community Investment HERE

As a socially responsible company, the Group is committed to {EA—BEBAEHEEITR A6 KEBE AT
understand the needs of the communities in which we operate. The  RHE ML EREML ROESR - AEERHEMR
Group understands that a productive relationship with the community 837 B iF 8 BE 2 AN A B1E 45 _FEVS AT 81
is the only sustainable way for the Company to gain ground in the — —a[#H&EF - Et - REERHIRATH - &
market. The Group is therefore committed to handling all opinions ¥ REBW T REEHBENFEE R RRE - &
and feedbacks from the community in a dynamic, friendly and S£EAHEELER  CHEHEREAZSHERS
responsive manner. The Group contributes to the community by  Rgt¥#e - NEERMEEG FMNEER - RE
bringing employment opportunities to locals whenever appropriate to B3 H#ERSMHENRBEE B HALR
echo with our mutually-beneficial relationship. The Group strives to R BB FEFZ -

develop long-term relationship with our stakeholders and seek to

make more contributions to have a positive impact on community

development.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The principal
activity of the Group are (i) sales of apparel products with the
provision of SCM services to customers; and (ii) the provision of
agency services for construction and related materials.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group during the year under review.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 80 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 of the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2020, the key factors affecting its results and financial
position are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report. A fair review of, and an indication
of likely future developments in the Group’s business are set out in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” in this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group are summarized as
follow:

(@  Reliance upon limited number of major customers

(b)  Failure to respond to changes in fashion trends and preferences
of our customers and end consumers

(c) Reliance on supplies for the manufacturing of apparel products
(d) Increase in the costs of raw materials or labour

(e)  Any other principal risks involved in the Group

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 160 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital and movements during the
year are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rate basis to existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the period from
1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves on the Group and the Company
during the year under review are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 83 and note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to approximately HK$9.1 million (2019: HK$14.1
million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s largest and
five largest customers’ aggregate amount represented approximately
30.7% (2019: approximately 36.1%) and 80.1% (2019: approximately
82.0%) of the Group’s total revenue, respectively.

During the year under review, the Group’s largest and five largest
suppliers’ aggregate amount represented approximately 36.8%
(2019: approximately 44.0%) and 90.0% (2019: approximately
97.0%) of the Group’s total purchase, respectively.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors nor any
of their close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) nor any
shareholders who or which own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in any of the Group’s
five largest customers and/or suppliers during the year ended 31
December 2020.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ko Sin Yun (Chairman)

Mr. Ko Man Ho (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheng Ka Wing

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. To King Yan, Adam

Mr. Kwok Chee Kin

Mr. Chan Kim Sun
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Pursuant to article 84 of the Article, at each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an AGM at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. Cheng Ka Wing and Mr. Kwok
Chee Kin shall retire from office by rotation at the AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out pages 18 to 23 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
the Listing date and will continue thereafter until terminated by not
less than one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the
other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with our Company with an initial term of three
years commencing from the Listing date, subject to termination by
either party by giving at least three months’ notice in writing.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has proposed or
entered into any service agreement or appointment letter with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.
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INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

Our Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors regarding his independence in accordance with
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers each of them being
independent.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Under the Articles, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, cost, charges, losses, damages and expenses
incurred or sustained by him as a Director provided that this indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
attached to him. The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal action against the Directors.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee will review and determine the
remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors with
reference to their responsibilities, workload, and time devoted to the
Group and the performance of the Group.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS
Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 12 of
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report, neither Director nor a connected entity of a
Director had any material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contract of significance to the business
of the Group, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed Giraffe Capital Limited to be the compliance
adviser. As at 31 December 2020, as notified by Giraffe Capital
Limited, except for the compliance adviser agreement entered into
between the Company and Giraffe Capital Limited dated 3 August
2017, neither Giraffe Capital Limited nor any of its directors or
employees or associates, had or may have, any interest in the
securities of the Company or any member of the Group (including
options or rights to subscribe for such securities which is required to
be notified to the Group pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing
Rules).

COMPETING INTEREST

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or
any of their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules), engaged in any business that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group, or had any other conflict of interest with
the Group. A deed of non-competition dated 16 April 2018 was
entered into by the controlling shareholders in favour of the Company
(for itself and as a trustee for its subsidiaries) (the “Deed”), details of
which were set out in the section headed “Relationship with
Controlling Shareholder” of the Prospectus.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from the
controlling Shareholders in respect of their compliance with the non-
competition undertakings under the Deed throughout the period from
the Listing Date to 31 December 2020. The independent non-
executive Directors have also reviewed the compliance with the non-
competition undertakings under the Deed by the controlling
Shareholders and confirmed that the controlling Shareholders have
not been in breach of the Deed during the year ended 31 December
2020.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Required Standard regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. Having been enquired by the
Company, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
Required Standard during the year ended 31 December 2020.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 16 April 2018 pursuant to a resolution
passed by the Company’s then sole shareholder. The following is a
summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme but does
not form part of, nor was it intended to be, part of the Share Option
Scheme nor should it be taken as affecting the interpretation of the
rules of the Share Option Scheme:

()  Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide eligible
participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company and to motivate, attract and retain the eligible
participants whose contributions are important to the long-term
growth and profitability of the Group.

(i) Participants of the Share Option Scheme and

Eligibility Criteria

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include any
employee, adviser, consultant, service provider, agent,
customer, partner or joint-venture partner of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries (including any director of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries) who is in full-time or part-time
employment with or otherwise engaged by the Company or any
of its subsidiaries at the time when an option is granted.

(i)  Maximum number of Shares subject to Options
The total number of shares available for issue in respect of
which options may be granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 10,000,000 Shares, being 10% of the Shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of this annual report (i.e.,
100,000,000 Shares) (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). The
Company may renew the Scheme Mandate Limit with
shareholders’ approval provided that each such renewal may
not exceed 10% of the shares in the Company in issue as at
the date of the shareholders’ approval.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Maximum number of Shares subject to Options
(Continued)

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding
options which have been granted and have yet to be exercised
pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 30.0% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible
Participant

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the
manner as set out in the Share Option Scheme, the maximum
number of shares underlying the options granted to each
eligible participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1.0% of the
shares of the Company in issue for the time being.

Option period

An option may be exercised at any time during the period to be
determined and identified by our Board to each grantee at the
time of making an offer for the grant of an option, but in any
event no later than 10 years from the date of grant (the “Option
Period”).

Payment on acceptance of Option offer

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted by an eligible
participant concerned in respect of all Shares which are offered
to such eligible participant when the duplicate letter comprising
acceptance of the offer duly signed by the eligible participant,
together with a non-refundable remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant
thereof is received by the Company within such time as may be
specified in the offer (which shall not be later than 21 days from,
and inclusive of, the date of offer).

Subscription price

Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules,
an option may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at
any time during the Option Period in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme and the terms on which the option
was granted.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(vii) Subscription price (Continued)

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be determined at the discretion of our Directors
but in any event will not be less than the highest of (a) the
closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as shown in
the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the offer
date of the particular option, which must be a business day; (b)
the average of the closing prices of the Shares as shown in the
daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date of that
particular option; and (c) the nominal value of a Share on the
offer date of the particular option.

(viii) Life of the Share Option Scheme

(ix)

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
commencing from the adoption date of the Share Option
Scheme until the termination date as provided therein (which
being the close of business of the Company on the date which
falls ten years from the date of the adoption of the Share Option
Scheme), after which period no further options will be granted
but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in
force to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of
any options granted or exercised prior thereto or otherwise as
may be required in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme.

Present status of the Share Option Scheme

No share option was granted, lapsed, exercised or cancelled by
the Company under the Share Option Scheme since its
adoption on 16 April 2018 and there was no outstanding share
option as at the date of this annual report (2019: Nil).

Further details on the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme were summarised in the paragraph headed “Statutory
and General Information — D. Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the sub-sections headed “Interests and Short
Positions of Directors and Chief Executive in the Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporation” and “Share Option Scheme” in this annual report, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2020 was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executive of the
Company (including their spouses or children under 18 years of age)
to have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as defined in the Securities and Future
Ordinance (the “SFO”) or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES AND
COMPLIANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the CG Code as set out
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The Board and the
management of the Company are committed to maintaining and
achieving a high standard of corporate governance practices with an
emphasis on a quality Board, an effective accountability system and a
healthy corporate culture in order to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders of the Company and enhance the business growth of
the Group. Where applicable, the Company has complied with the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2020.

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
24 to 40 of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in this annual report, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the year under review.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group aims to protect the environment by minimising adverse
impacts of daily operations to environment, such as energy and
recycling of office resources. The Group will continue to seek better
environmental practices and promote the correct environmental
attitudes and values within the organisation. The Group has complied
with all relevant laws, rules and regulations regarding environmental
protection, health and safety, workplace conditions and employment.

Details of the environmental policy are set out in the ESG Report on
pages 41 to 56 of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the Group were entered into or existed during the year under
review.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, there was a sufficient
prescribed public float as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of the segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTIONS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of each of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange: (a)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any
interests and short positions in which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or (b) pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein (the
“Register”); or (c) pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long Position in the Shares

Name of Director Nature of interest and capacity

EERRESTRAEBERAQFARA
MBEBNRG  HERORERE
HNEENAE

MR20205F 12 A1 H - EEZ R AR B H=ITH
ABRARASEMEEEE (EERFH L
EIEBIZEXVES) ik fn - MR R EEE S
R RART  BHEQQBREZESHFRIPEGKHE

>t

XVERZE 7 8 0 #R /B K& AN ) S Bt 22 P ey A 2
ERE (BRESERER S RAEEIBRBIEX
WEERESEANTAERIOAR)  HbO)R
BRSNS GRIIEI2GAE TN ZIGITLE
Aofit ([ &M SRR - RO REFRE
SHEITEFRXFHHGEM LT AIE5.46 1REH
EARRARBR R SORR T

=

RV B
Percentage
Number of of issued
Shares held share capital

EsfR BEMER ST FEROGEE HMEBRTREABIL
(Note 1) (Note 3)
(MHsE1) (BI=E3)

Mr. Ko Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 75,000,000 (L) 75%

=L REEHEE R (FfE2) 75,000,000 (L) 75%

Notes: P -

1. The letter “L” denotes to the long position in the Shares. 1. FH LI ZRTRBROPITE -

2. The Shares are registered in the name of Metro Vanguard Limited 2. Z % & 15 MAMetro Vanguard Limited ([ Metro

(“Metro Vanguard”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, the issued share capital of which is wholly owned by Mr. Ko.
Accordingly, Mr. Ko is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Metro Vanguard for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

3. The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the
Company’s total number of issued Shares as at 31 December 2020
(i.e., 100,000,000 Shares).
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REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS
EEGRE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTIONS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Continued)
Long Position in the Shares of Associated
Corporation

BEENBSITHRAERARTRHE
HEEIENRSG  HERORER
EFNERRKAE &)

RARBEZE D R 4 R

Number and Percentage

Name of Capacity/ class of of issued

Name of Director associated corporation Nature of interest securities share capital

EEnE HECEE =R B3 EnttE BHEHERER MERITREESL

Mr. Ko Metro Vanguard Beneficial owner 100 100%
Ordinary shares

=L Metro Vanguard BEHEEA 100 & 38 ik 100%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required to be entered in the Register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rules 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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202055 / BABIRERERAT 69



REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interest and short positions of the
persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
in the shares, underlying shares of the Company which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO or required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

FERRRRORAEABRSGNERS
R/HHKR

MR20205F 12 A1 H - REZH AR A H=ITH
ABIN  UTALTEARRBRGD KA %
EREBHFRPEBEAEXNVBE2REIDIIE
SCBAME AR A KRR AT sk B R AR IR B 5 K A
EIEPIZE 336 AN RIAFENETMAOER X
KRBT -

Long Position in the Shares R EVEF B
Percentage
Number of of Issued
Name Nature of interest and capacity Shares held share capital
BB A ERMtERSH FriE R 40 HE#1T
A BREBFDL
(Note 1) (Note 3)
(BF5E1) (M7E3)
Metro Vanguard Beneficial owner 75,000,000 (L) 75%

Metro Vanguard EmEAA

Ms. Chan Sau Fung Interest of spouse (Note 2) 75,000,000 (L) 75%

BRFEB L fl @ e (FIaE2)
Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes to the long position in the Shares.

2. Ms. Chan Sau Fung is the spouse of Mr. Ko. By virtue of the SFO, she
is deemed to be interested in all Shares held by Metro Vanguard in
which Mr. Ko is deemed to be interested.

3. The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the
Company’s total number of issued shares as at 31 December 2020 (i.e.,
100,000,000 Shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company
had not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying shares or debentures which would fall under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO to be disclosed
to the Company, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS
EEGRE

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this annual report.

Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting period
are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 comply with applicable reporting standards, GEM
Listing Rules, and that adequate disclosures have been made.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“DTT”) had been the auditors of the
Group since the Listing Date until 31 October 2019. On 31 October
2019, DTT resigned as the auditors of the Company and Fuson CPA
Limited, currently known as Yongtuo Fuson CPA Limited, was
appointed as the new auditors of the Group to fill the casual vacancy
with the recommendation of the Audit Committee of the Board with
effect from 31 October 2019.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 have been audited by Yongtuo Fuson CPA Limited,

who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

A resolution for their re-appointment as the auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ko Sin Yun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B AR &

KINBEEFMEFTERA A
YONGTUO FUSON CPA LIMITED

TO THE MEMBERS OF
VISION INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vision
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
80 to 159, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R TR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

BARENER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B RHERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BREEEE

AREETEE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESHETTREFARETSENSG A

Revenue Recognition

Was R

We identified revenue recognition, relating to the sales of
apparel products with the provision of supply chain
management services to customers by the Group,
regarding whether sales transaction have occurred as a
key audit matter due to its significance to the consolidated
financial statements. During the year ended 31 December
2020, revenue from sales of apparel products with
provision of supply chain management services amounted
to approximately HK$91,895,000.

EEBER BERENEFPREMHMHEEEERBENREE
mEERERR(FRHEERSEEEE) B A B E
B RAREHGAVBMERNEZN - IE 2020612
R BIEHE  RERHHERERREAELREER
55 B YR 4973 91,895,000 8 7T ©

Revenue from the sales of apparel products with the
provision of supply chain management services is
recognised when the customer obtains the control of the
apparel products underlying the particular performance
obligation, being when the apparel products are delivered
to the customers at the designated location and the titles
are passed to the customers. The accounting policy for
revenue recognition is disclosed in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

R HEEEERGAELEREEMFEEHWURNE
FPESHFFTBROBTAMNREEmIEHIER - BE
PREERNIECHHINTEFAMERERERFKT
AR - W RN BT BRI BN GE M MAMES -
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Our procedures in relation to assessing the occurrence of
sales of apparel products with the provision of supply
chain management services included:

BB AR REEERERERGAESREERHEE
WiZfFEE

° Obtaining an understanding of the revenue business
process and revenue recognition policy;
T AR R RSB AE R aR FERR IR

° Reviewing contract terms, on a sample basis, to
evaluate whether the Group’s accounting policy is in
compliance with the relevant accounting standard;
MERER S OG- S ERENSFTBREST
MR g EERRST

° Testing the key controls over revenue recognition
which addressing the occurrence, accuracy and
timing of the revenue recognition; and
RIS R TR = ZIE SR - EE R MR B
AEREME R R

° Tracing recorded sales transactions, on a sample
basis, to the corresponding invoices, delivery
documents and settlement records.
MEREMELRIEER S EREEE
Haosx o

A XM B i



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B R B R E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BEENEE

HAREETEE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEFTTRERREEASENS L

Provision of expected credit losses (“ECL”) for trade receivables

BEZEUSENRAEEER ([BHEEER]) RE

We identified the estimated provision of ECL for trade
receivables as a key audit matter due to the significant
balance of trade receivables to the consolidated
statement of financial position and the significant degree
of management judgement involved in recognising
impairment loss on trade receivables.

B E S RERENTEREEBEAIREI ABERE
AEE RAREZRUFERGEE VB RARTHER
BEX TREREHREHERRFIBRESERTZED
BAHE -

As disclosed in notes 3 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements, the provision of ECL was assessed
by the management based on valuations prepared by an
independent qualified professional valuer. The ECL was
assessed based on provision matrix. In determining the
ECL using the provision matrix, it is based on historical
default rates taking into consideration both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable including forward-looking information that is
available.

FREMBHREAMIIRIHEE  BHEEEENEES
EREEREE A ERNEELEMRENEEETE -
EHREEBEDENBEBREREN ML - RIBRBERET
TREEERE  EARELENXAREBRSEN AR
MHA AT E NI EL (BEREILER) RETE -

The carrying amounts of trade receivables of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$20,235,000, net of loss
allowance of ECL amounting to approximately HK$66,000
as at 31 December 2020.

M20205F 12 A31H » EXENE ZERYIGIEREELN &
20,235,000 7T (R 78 BA1E B 5 18 /9 I 18 7818 49 66,000 78
JT) e

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the sufficiency of
the estimated impairment of trade receivables included:
MAEE SHEYGRIBEGIRENZOERN S - BMINEZE
FrBE4E

° Understanding the management process of
assessing the estimated impairment loss on trade
receivables;

. TRREHEE S NSRRI EB BN ERIET

° Assessing the reasonableness of the methods and
assumptions used in the Group’s ECL with reference
to the historical default rates and forward-looking
information of trade receivables;

. 2REGERWFENELENENMAERFSE 7
it BEXRERBEEEETEANTENRRNEE
M

° Discussing with management and independent
qualified professional valuer including:

. HEBERBY G ERNEERMLEMNR - 245

— the credit quality of the customers, such as
past default history, aging analysis and
historical settlement pattern; and

— BFPHNEEHE MBEMENESL  BRESW
FMELEERN &

— the provision rates, internal credit ratings,
historical default rates and forward-looking

information
—  BER IBERTS BLELHERMATEEES
&

TN

° Evaluating the independent qualified professional
valuer’s competence, capabilities and objectivity;

and
. SHEBY BB ETEMMNER  ENNMEEM
K

o Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the
aging analysis of trade receivables.
. AT SOREE 5 e Wk TR BR e 9 T Y B HE I -
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B B AR &

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R TR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R TR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lee Yan Fai.

Yongtuo Fuson CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lee Yan Fai
Practicing Certificate Number PO6078
Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GERERHEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE2020F12 A1 HIEFE

For the year ended
31 December
HE12A3MBLEE

2020 2019

2020 fF 20194

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

MtaE FHET FET

Revenue Wz 5 92,821 84,686

Cost of sales SHE A (76,817) (63,069)

Gross profit EF 16,004 21,617

Other income EaugA 7 894 649

Other gain and (losses), net E e & (E518) 558 8 779 (959)

Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HERZ (5,296) (8,299)

Administrative expenses TR (8,600) (8,494)

Finance costs B RRAR 9 (570) (482)

Profit before tax R &4 BT Vs ) 10 3,211 4,032

Income tax expenses FTsFiR 11 (660) (889)
Profit and total comprehensive income  FREA L2 E K458

for the year 2,551 3,143

Hong Kong Hong Kong

cents cents

A4l AL

(Restated)

(i E5)

Earnings per share — basic FRAEF — &EX 14 2,55 3.14
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R &
As at 31 December 2020
R 202012 A31 H

As at 31 December

M12H8381H
2020 2019
2020 20194
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE F#&xT FHIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MERE 15 27,860 29,038
Intangible assets BmEEE 16 6,583 7,583
Deposits bigera 18 67 67
34,510 36,688
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 17 838 2,804
Trading and other receivables, B 5 R E A EWRIE
prepayments and deposits AN RERES 18 54,623 8,009
Tax recoverable AR e FE 1B 1,708 -
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHB MRS 19 6,046 30,525
63,215 41,338
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBAE
Trade payables and other payables B 5 N H M EIE 20 7,195 2,259
Contract liabilities AHAaE 21 102 2,226
Tax payable JE TR - 174
Bank borrowings RITIER 22 32,320 10,340
39,617 14,999
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEETFHE 23,598 26,339
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERARBER
LIABILITIES 58,108 63,027
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e M BMRR R

As at 31 December 2020

20204 12 A 31 H

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
et FHBxT FHEIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRTEEE 23 562 532
NET ASSETS EEFHE 57,546 62,495
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARR#E
Share Capital fig 7 24 10,000 10,000
Reserves & 47,546 52,495
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY PRERAER 57,546 62,495

The consolidated financial statements on pages 80 to 159 were 808 1598 K4 & BT 7 | & B M 2021 £3
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2021 and were A2 A== ETIE - BRUTEERKRE
signed on its behalf by: 5

Ko Sin Yun Ko Man Ho
= HtED =P8
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERREEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE2020F 12 A1 HIEFE

Reserves
1]
Share Share Other  Translation Retained Total
capital premium* reserve* reserve* profits* equity
R BARE* Hitr g BERE* REER* ERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TR FAER TAT TET
(note 24) (note below)
(PisE24) (RLATMEE)
As at 1 January 2019 201961 18 10,000 38,444 (103,262) (7,252) 144,422 82,352
Profit and total comprehensive /%71 & 2 Bl A%
income for the year - - - - 3,143 3,143
Dividends (note 13) B g (71 13) - - - - (23,000) (23,000)
As at 31 December 2019and 1 2019F12 A31 B}
1 January 2020 202061/ 1H 10,000 38,444 (103,262) (7,252) 124,565 62,495
Profit and total comprehensive & R | & 2 E R 258
income for the year - - - - 2,551 2,551
Dividends (note 13) B2 (HFE13) - - - - (7,500) (7,500)
As at 31 December 2020 R2020£12 8318 10,000 38,444 (103,262) (7,252) 119,616 57,546

Note:

The amounts comprise the consolidated reserves of approximately
HK$47,546,000 (2019: HK$52,495,000) in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

The amount represents the deemed distribution arising from issue of
financial guarantee to related companies prior to the Listing (as defined
in note 1) of the Company. Prior to the Listing (as defined in note 1) of
the Company, the Group has provided financial guarantee to companies
controlled by Mr. Murray Ko and his spouse. Mr. Murray Ko is the
brother of Mr. Ko, the Controlling Shareholder of the Company (as
defined in note 1). Such financial guarantee was measured at its fair
value at initial recognition based on the credit spread (including the
assumption on probability of default and recovery ratio) and the
maximum exposure of the facility to the Group at that time of
recognising the financial guarantee liability. The fair value of financial
guarantee liability at initial recognition was recognised in other reserve
of equity as deemed distribution to the shareholder, and the financial
guarantee liability was measured at the higher of: (i) the amount of
obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with HKAS
37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” (before
application of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instrument” (‘HKFRS 9”))/the amount
of the loss allowance determined in accordance with HKFRS 9 (since 1
January 2018); and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policy. All financial guarantee liability was released
upon the Listing.

Rt

ZECBEREFEMBEIRRRANMEEHED
47,546,000 # 7T (2019 4F : 52,495,000/ 7T) °

CRERERARRLETCER RMED)

Al E AR A R A S ERATEERN
BIEDR - RART L (EZEBMEET)
Al - ANEE D R85 E A N E A B
R AR ISR - @B ETIAR
AIEEREESEE(EERLME) AR
7 ZMBERRVSERBERVMEES
=Z(BERERELOITREE KB LER) K
AEERERYBERAESEERED
BRRRBREEAFENE - MEERAE
NN F RS A FER LR R
RAERIEARESIR  mMIAKERAGER
THMSRSETE: VAHWETHNETS
BOHDNBEBEEBSSTENEI7HR &
- KREBERSIREE | (REREBH
BHMEERFOR LT E| ([BRHE
BEkpEoRk ) 28, RIEFBT R
SERIFE O (H2018F1 A1 HR)ET
MEBRESEMET » L) VIRERK
SEME(RES) RIBE WS ERBURRE
RE R - FTERKEREEDR L
TIRFERBR ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

For the year ended
31 December
HE12AMBLEE

2020 2019
2020 fF 20194
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Profit before tax B AR T 3,211 4,032
Adjustments for: LT SIBEL AR
Interest income F B U (1) (49)
Depreciation of property, WME - HERREITE
plant and equipment 1,178 1,176
Amortisation of intangible assets A Y 1,000 1,000
Bad debts written off isEEE R 135 627
Impairment loss recognised for H 5 EYCGRIE TR R E R 18
trade receivables 66 -
Finance costs B ISR 570 482
Operating cash flows before movements EEESBYRIILERSRE
in working capital 6,159 7,268
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERD (38hn) 1,966 (1,247)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other E 5 R EAMEWFRIE « BRI
receivables, prepayments and deposits Rird (3Em)ms (46,802) 18,137
Increase (decrease) increase in trade and B 5 N E b EAFIEE I CR)
other payables 4,936 (9,443)
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities BHaBECHD) &M (2,124) 2,209
Cash (used in) from operations & (A FBES (35,865) 16,924
Income tax paid B ETS R (2,512) -
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM ReETH (A MBREFHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (38,377) 16,924
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Interest received =) 1 49
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BE B2 - BifE RiE1E - (210)
Advance to ultimate holding company EESZ Sl RUNCIE- (13) -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REFBFAREFE
ACTIVITIES (12) (161)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE

For the year ended
31 December
HE12AMBLEE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TERx FAET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEE
Interest paid BAF B (570) (482)
Dividends paid EfEE (7,500) (23,000)
New bank borrowings raised MEFRITER 85,434 10,501
Repayments of bank borrowings EZIRITEN (63,454) (11,085)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) MEEBME(FRA)REFEEH
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 13,910 (24,046)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERRESEEWRD FEHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (24,479) (7,283)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FNBRSRBESEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 30,525 37,808
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERRERESEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 6,046 30,525
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE2020F12 A1 HIEFE

1.

GENERAL

Vision International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 19 January 2017 under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands and its shares were listed on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 4 May 2018 (the “Listing”). The Company’s immediate and
ultimate holding company is Metro Vanguard Limited (“Metro
Vanguard”), a limited company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) with limited liability. The ultimate
controlling party of Metro Vanguard is Mr. Ko Sin Yun (“Mr. Ko”
or the “Controlling Shareholder”) who is also the executive
director of the Company. The addresses of the Company’s
registered office and principal place of business are 3/F, China
United Plaza, 1002-1008 Tai Nan West Street, Cheung Sha
Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group are sales of apparel products
and other products with the provision of supply chain
management services and provision of agency services on
construction and related materials.

The Company’s functional currency is United States Dollars
(“US$"). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”), which is different from the functional
currency of the Company. For the convenience of the financial
statements’ users, the directors of the Company consider that
presenting the consolidated financial statements in HK$ is
preferable as the Company’s shares are listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE2020F 12 A1 HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“‘HKICPA”) for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Definition of Material

Definition of a Business
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The nature and the impact of the application of Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year are
described below:

Impacts on the application of Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRSs

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance to all
parties to understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on measurement
and reporting financial performance, new guidance on the
derecognition of assets and liabilities, and updated definitions
and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies
the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement
uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual Framework is
not a standard, and none of the concepts contained therein
override the concepts or requirements in any standard. The
Conceptual Framework did not have any significant impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE2020F12 A1 HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS
8 for the first time in the current year. The amendments provide
a new definition of material that states “information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements, which provide financial information
about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments also clarify
that materiality depends on the nature or magnitude of
information, either individually or in combination with other
information, in the context of the financial statements taken as a
whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments clarify that while businesses
usually have outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated
set of activities and assets to qualify as a business. To be
considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or
processes and continuing to produce outputs. The
amendments also introduce additional guidance that helps to
determine whether a substantive process has been acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE2020F 12 A1 HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business (Continued)

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional
concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. Under the optional concentration test, the acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business if substantially all of
the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a
single identifiable asset or group of similar assets. The gross
assets under assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents,
deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of
deferred tax liabilities. The election on whether to apply the
optional concentration test is available on transaction-by-
transaction basis.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group but may impact future periods should
the Group make any acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE2020F12 A1 HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 17
Amendment to
HKFRS 16
Amendments to

HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16
Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendment to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments’
Insurance Contracts'®

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions*

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?®

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2°

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)'

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract®

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-20202

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE2020F 12 A1 HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
these new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated

financial statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R M
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassess whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed
above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”). In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to
provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group as a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group
as an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
before that good is transferred to a customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Principal versus agent (Continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service
by another party. In this case, the Group does not control
the specified good or service provided by another party
before that good or service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue
in the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the
specified goods or services to be provided by the other

party.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations
on, the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R M
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components, including
contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a
property which includes both leasehold land and non-
lease building components, unless such allocation cannot
be made reliably.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office premises that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments
on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation

reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under “other
income”.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable the taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary difference can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

100  VISION INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2020

mEGEMERREEREE
SEEE @)

3.2 EEEFTER

BiE (&)
RIERIANIRG M BRERAEER
B ENREE R EERTUR T P
MHERE AR ZEER o BT
MEAE—RIDAAERRHE K=
HWER - RIERIBEE—RIVSAAA
AR B = RREERR - MEDART BEEN AR
FETR AT B2 2 408 JE A A5 P15 2R A3 DA
HHAENEFEERNEEAER
ﬁ%%ﬁ%uBKﬁiﬁﬁEigggT?D?igﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁgﬁi%

o R P ZHER (ER & OFRR M) 2
¢W§F&akﬁgimﬁﬁ§ﬁﬁ

T ERRAV BN AZE S A
A ZEREREEERBEITT
TR -

EERIAEERREEDRRERR
=6 WATBAIBERABTHERT
i AR AR TR T Y E ) 2 5R e AR D
BERRT AR

EERAEERAEDRNBERE
S BIRE A HfE A AR (IR R
& HAR AT 2 AL PR A SR BUR MR O T
K(RBE))TE -

AAERERERBENEERRRIEA
SEEHNBREMRKOKEETHE
ERAGEREENTANRBER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R M
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.
To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of
financial position. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the
entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

WEGEMERREEREE
SEEE @

3.2 EEEFTHBER @)

BiE ()
BEEREANRITENGEMHAEE
EHAHARBAGR  ARE TS
Al — B 5 R T [R] — FE AR TR B R AL
BIFTIS B RN - IRIEPAISTHE EM
BEH TR -

B SR E R IR N R HER 1
fiff EL B FE K b 2 R T RS B X
FErempERMIEB AR RIETE R
EREHRIAND BN 2 E WS E
BT RER o

M BERRE

YE - BELRBRFARELEEX
REEMHMRBHAFETRRENET
BE - W% - BB RRETHIRKAR
ZERRFNE RHERRFHRERE
(B RERE MBI R P IR ©

EARKEMMERAEER(BEA
ErREBFEHO)FEHMAR AIK
BN ERERE 2R A FEL
> REELHREFEHS 2B
D WA RS SERE
o HE RN GS MBIRLR
EIRIEREEE]  ERERX
EREHE LA FHEETHO R
AOBCEm 2 HAI OB - RIBIR
MEDIBR/ME - BFEKRE -

2020 F 3 / FHBEIRER B R A

101



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R M
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets
At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if

any).

The recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be established, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets (Continued)
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis
to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R M
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs
Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined on a
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
cost of completion and cost necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
fair value. All of the Group’s financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised costs.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).

For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade and other receivables, deposits and bank
balances, which are subject to impairment under HKFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables and measures the lifetime ECL on each
debtor individually based on the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group under the contract and the cashflows
that the Group expects to receive, with the consideration
of forward looking information.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R M
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable:

° when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

° information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Also, the Group considers that default has occurred when
the instrument is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R M
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

° Significant financial difficulty of the issuer of the
borrower; or

° A breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event; or

o The lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

° It is becoming probably that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice when
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL
The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss
if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The
Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on
trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on a
collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status and

° Nature, size and industry of debtors.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to

ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R M
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount with the exception of trade receivables
where the correspondence adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments that are issued are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangement and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MEFREMBHREEREE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following is the key assumption concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE2020F 12 A1 HIEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on internal credit
ratings as groupings of various debtors that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical
default rates taking into consideration both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable
including forward-looking information that is available without
undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables with credit impaired are assessed for ECL
individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables
are disclosed in notes 18.

REVENUE

Revenue from contracts with customers represents the fair
value of amounts received and receivable from the sales of
apparel and related products with the provision of supply chain
management services to customers and agency fee from
construction and related materials by the Group.

Timing of revenue recognition and category of
revenue

4.

FTESHHERATTRER
EMEFERERE@®

B 5 RWSIANAREEEE
g
AEBERBRBREEFTEE S RBUKKIERN
BHEEEE - BHEXRTEAEESRLUE
BRANEBANABEEFRET - &
BEMREBEAEEBEROETTZEEBHA
EEBTVERARIENMEERESHAIE
BEBBXHNABEENMETE - NE
BERH AEBGEMNEEEERE
WELERBAELERNER - I F
BERENEZREGAERBREEERE
B

EHEERRERBEEIXMAEDHVE -
ERRHEEBRRASEE 5 RIKRIE
HE R EE R HIFE 18

W 58
KAEFAOBREEARERTFREHAM
ERERRGAEEREMAABEMHEE
B B UK K% B UK R IR A R 3 8 % AR R A Y
REBNRFE -

W iR I M s 0 4R

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Recognised at a point in time and A J 1B R D B R 55 HR A AU FERR
short-term contracts:
Sales of apparel and related products SHE AR [ B REE n SR IR 1t
with the provision of supply chain e SR E IR RS
management services 91,895 84,686
Agency fee from construction and BERMBEMHENRIESR
related materials 926 -
92,821 84,686

2020 F 3 / FHBEIRER B R A

115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE2020F12 A1 HIEFE

5.

REVENUE (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition and category of
revenue (Continued)

The customers of the Group are mainly (i) apparel and related
products sourcing agents, boutique shops and large
department stores in Europe and (ii) construction and related
materials sourcing agents in South East Asia. All of the Group’s
sales of apparel products and construction materials are
provided directly to the customers. Contracts with the Group’s
customers are fixed-price contracts.

All revenue contracts are for period of one year or less. As
permitted by HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s
revenue by product or service category.

Y (@)
W s e RR Ry ] Mo W s 0 18 ()

AEENEPIEZRONBOMNMIRE RIEE
EmFEAE  BERERALBERF &)
REEMEERBEMRIRBAE - K&
BAARKERMNEEVHHEHERR
BEPRH - BAEETFPIVHNANRE
EBERAL -

FEREANRBI—FHIAT - mEEH
BREEMNEASIRAMAT  DEEZFR
ERANNR ZERLERE

TRIRE kR IR BB AR B A W
B4 -

2020 2019
2020 ¢ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT

Apparel and related products BR % R AHBAE M
Knitwear i m 82,324 78,317
T-shirts Tl 4,170 2,710
Woven R’k 3,457 3,659
Others Hh 1,944 -
91,895 84,686
Construction and related materials BERAABME 926 -
Total 4Bt 92,821 84,686
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5.

REVENUE (Continued) 5. W&
Timing of revenue recognition and category of W 2 e R B ] M e 70 8 ()
revenue (Continued)
The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s TREEPERESTRER AW RAM -
revenue by customer type.
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Apparel and related products BR % R ABBAE @
Apparel sourcing agent AREEERAE (I8 67,791 58,839
Boutique shop REEEE 20,401 19,014
Department store BEARQA 3,703 6,833
91,895 84,686
Construction and related materials BENHEBME
Construction materials sourcing agent EEMEHRERRE 926 -
Total st 92,821 84,686
OPERATING SEGMENTS 6. L&D
The Group’s operating segment is determined based on REFENLEDBIHRBEFARE RS

information reported to the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM”) of the Group, being the executive directors of the
Company throughout the year, for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, for management
purpose, the Group operates in one business unit based on
their products, and its sole operating segment is the sales of
apparel products with the provision of apparel supply chain
management. The CODM monitors the revenue, results, assets
and liabilities of its business unit as a whole and regularly
reviews financial information prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs which is consistent with those presented in this report,
and without further discrete financial information. Accordingly,
no analysis of segment information other than entity-wide
information is presented for the year ended 31 December 2019.

RERFEAAEAEBEERES (A
RAMHTES) (XELERFE]) 2%
MAREE -

HZE2019F12A31HILFE iEEM
T AEERBEEERGSE —EEBEN -
REME—KEHE0 : REREHEEREER
HEREER TELERFEEITHE
BEANEREKZ X8 EERBE -
WEMEMBEBEE SN BRELENRRD
MEER  ZEMBERERREMZT
E—H - BWEHEHMBBER o Bt
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HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
commenced the business relating to the provision of agency
services for construction and related materials along with the
incorporation of a subsidiary, and it is considered as a new
operating and reportable segment by the CODM.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments for the year
ended 31 December 2020 under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. Sales of apparel and related products with the provision
of supply chain management services (“Apparel
Products”), the Group’s operating and reportable
segment prior to the year ended 31 December 2020; and

2. Provision of agency services for construction and related
materials (“Construction Materials”), a new operating
and reportable segment during the year ended 31
December 2020

Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

from continuing operations by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

6.

LS )

HZE00F12A31HILFEE  BEEM
Ry —FEHBAGR  AEEHERBRRE
BEADMAMHRERENER B8
KERREBERATNEENAIZRD

B

MmE - RIEBEVHIREERESH -
BEREZE2020F 12 A31BILFER
H|oEpan T

to S ?E’\E

S

R

—_

SHE AR R ARRAE i R IR R e o
EERYE(REER])  AEAEER
HZE 20204912 A 31 B ILFERTALE
BRAI2H/AE : &

2. REEERMEEME((EEMHDR
BART - AEZE 20205 12 A31 ik
FEMFTIECERAI2MDEL ©

7 b et M SRR
B R E REAE A E B R
A 2EABANMT :

BZE2020F 1231 HILEE

Apparel Construction

Products Materials Consolidated
REEmM BEME wEe
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHExT FHET
Segment revenue 7 b
External sales HINHE 91,895 926 92,821
Segment profit 5 8B 10,600 855 11,455
Unallocated other income ROBHEAMUA 487
Unallocated other gains KoL H Al ss R B F5E
and losses, net 980
Unallocated corporate general Ko AT —MR1TE X
administrative expenses (9,141)
Finance costs B RN (570)
Group’s profit before tax RNEERRTADE 3,211
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6.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of government grant, net foreign exchange
difference, central administration costs, directors’ emoluments
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable segments as at 31 December 2020:

%%ﬁ% ; uﬂEﬁl EﬁWEIS}EﬁLZKE

VEETBERMAR o 2 8P F 5 & o & AT AR
BaM - EhUESERRFHE - EX
ZRFE  PRUTBRA - EFME M
AR o BT ERD B R RIRFFE R T
BRERREZRNAETE -

DEEENEBE
LA AZREEN2020F 12 A31 iR 2
MoEEI D EERBESN

2020
2020 F
HK$’000
FET
Segment assets PEEE
Apparel Products HER 21,542
Construction Materials EREEMR 40,107
Total reportable segment assets AE2HRSHEELTE 61,649
Corporate and other unallocated assets RERHEMKDEE E 36,076
Consolidated assets SEBE 97,725
Segment liabilities PEEE
Apparel Products RR & 2,657
Construction Materials FREEMR 1,349
Total reportable segment assets A 2W|H A EELTE 4,006
Corporate and other unallocated assets NARHMARS LA E 36,173
Consolidated liabilities LeEafE 40,179
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
partial of property, plant and equipment and deposits,
other receivables, prepayment, tax recoverable and bank
and cash balances which were managed in a centralised
manner.

o All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than partial of other payables, certain bank borrowings
and deferred tax liabilities which were managed in a
centralised manner.

For the year ended 31 December 2020

= 0 8P (4
& E&Efaw
ZNUBRARRHBHANEERMES -
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BREBOWE  BERBBEARES
H fth FEUGRIE ~ TR RIE - EIH&@%R
HARBITRBSEHRAERERE
SN FMBEEEDIRELEDE -

o REDHMEMNKE - ETRITEE
FMRERIA B EIAER T XEEIN
FBERBEINRELEDE -

BE2020F 12831 HLLFE

Total
Apparel Construction  reportable
Products Materials segments Others Consolidated
CES:]
REER BEMB DEAE Hith o)
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THT THT TET THT THT
Amount included in the measure 5t A 73 BB 5 B & E
of segment profit or loss or HEMSE
segment assets:
Amortisation B 1,000 - 1,000 - 1,000
Impairment losses under EREEEBEATH
ECL model REBE 22 44 66 - 66
Bad debts for trade receivables & 5 fE U FIESZBR 135 - 135 - 135
Amount regularly provided to the T #i1m F BE L HR% Zi2it
CODM but notincluded inthe BNt AP &8s D &
measure of segment profitor  BEEIE -
loss or segment assets:
Other income Hiplg A - - - 487 487
Net foreign exchange gain [ 5 a5 - - - 980 980
Depreciation e - - - 1,178 1,178
Directors’ emoluments EEEa - - - 2,312 2,312
Finance costs B - - - 570 570
Income tax expenses SRS - - - 660 660
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Geographical information
The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong.

The Group’s revenue from customers by the geographical
location of the customers.

g @

Holm &

REBEBIEBUNER -

AEBIZMWEMES D 2 FPWEIAT ©

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT

Apparel Products AR 72 an
Germany = 64,474 64,550
Hong Kong BB 11,183 326
Macau SEPY 6,432 -
France 7 5,107 11,742
Switzerland I+ 2,488 3,435
Austria B 3h R 2,211 4,633
91,895 84,686

Construction Materials MR
Cambodia SRR 926 _
Total F2E 92,821 84,686

Information about major customers BEAFEEFPHER

Revenue from customers individually contributing over 10% of

fERIME AR EREFE KT 10% A EHE

the Group’s revenue of the corresponding year are as follows: P T :

2020 2019

2020 20194

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#&xT FHT

Customer A* TP A 28,234 30,830

Customer B* EFEB* 22,064 21,881
Customer C* BECH 11,183 -

Customer D* BED! * 9,311
* The corresponding revenue does not contribute over 10% of the * FAENRFEAEE R Z T BB 10% °

Group’s revenue.

# Revenue from Apparel Products.

¢ KA REE MRS ©
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BE2020F12 A1 HIEFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. RKEIIT@
Non-current assets (excluding deposits) by geographical REEMIENEBE D RERDEE (TRIE
location of assets are detailed below: BE)FIBWT ¢
2020 2019
2020 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Hong Kong =i 27,860 20,038
Germany = 6,583 7,583
Total 4Bt 34,443 36,621
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HwA
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Sample sales income B sHE WA 407 600
Government grant (note below) e (RIATHEE) 486 -
Bank interest income RITA B A 1 14
Other interest income HF B WA - 35
Total @t 894 649
Note: During the current year, the Group recognised government Mz - RAEE - AEERESHRTIZEOER
grants of HK$486,000 related to Employment Support Scheme ¥ 5t 3 5 R BT 48 B) 486,000 7T+ BN
provided by the Hong Kong government, which is Covid-19- Covid-19 48 BA#HRL < /5 %8 Covid-19 AR #
related subsidies. Government grants in respect of the Covid-19- BE BB T f B AN 52 B 155 & AR f Bh i 2
related subsidies were recognised at the time the Group fulfilled PEHERD ©

the relevant granting criteria.
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8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 8. Hfth=mRkEEFE
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Bad debts written off in respect of SLE B e W IE N EIEER
trade receivables (135) (627)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  #t8 5 FE W IE R A B EE B
trade receivables (66) -
Net foreign exchange gain (losses) SN 2 (B 1B ) JF 58 980 (332)
Total 5T 779 (959)
9. FINANCIAL COSTS 9. B
2020 2019
2020 fF 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Interest on bank borrowings AT S 570 482
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10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging:

10. BRBLATE

BRI AR R TR A N IRIR R

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Employee benefit expenses EE A
— Directors’ remuneration (note 12) — EEHM (MIE12) 2,312 2,377
— Other staff costs — BEME TR
— Salaries and other benefits — ITEREAMEFR 2,049 2,314
— Retirement benefit scheme — R FIET B
contributions 87 98
Auditor’s remuneration 1% EL AN B 400 400
Depreciation of property, Y BENMEREINE
plant and equipment 1,178 1,176
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EHE 1,000 1,000
Bad debts written off in respect of LB 5 e R IE N eI BR
trade receivable 135 627
Impairment losses under ECL model TEAEEEEER TREBE 66 -
Cost of inventories recognised as cost BRAEMEERANTFEER A
of sales 76,817 63,069
Minimum lease payment under operating +ith RIEF L LHER
leases in respect of land and building RERBENK - 47
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

1. FifB%iRx

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH&T FHT

Hong Kong Profits Tax: FRNED
— Current tax — BIERRS 692 860
— Over-provision in prior years — BEFERERE (62) -
Deferred taxation (note 23) EIERTE (M 23) 30 29
Total Bt 660 889

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime,
the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25% and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed
at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, starting from the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first
HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million.

201843 21 H » HABMAEEIB2017
FHHUSET) (BT RO ER(HRHE
R]) SIAMBAFEHEGE - ZIEHE
ZR2018F3 A28 AEEX AEE TR
BHEAE - REMAFESHEHE 68
1% & @ & 2 /Y & 2,000,000 7 JC 5 F) 15 1%
8.25% BI L E 4N Fi + 1 2,000,000 % 7T A £
B0 M #8512 16.5% R RN FL - TR A
TAEHEFEERNEB TN R
HEEE1Z16.5% M B — B R M -

Fitt - BEE2018412 A31 HIFFEHE
B EHBHE E 2,000,000 78 7T FE R B F)
#98.25% K 2,000,000 7% JT LA _E [ R %1 55 Fl
M 16.5% =t &
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 11. BB @
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FARAMEAY TEHEE BT MEM 2K
before tax per the consolidated statements of profit or loss and EREOBRTRANEFERAOT ¢

other comprehensive income as follows:

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit before tax B F7 Bz 3,211 4,032
Tax at the applicable Hong Kong Profits 1% 8 &8 RIS B 5 2 (16.5%)
Tax rates (16.5%) ETEMBIE 530 665
Tax effect of income not taxable for BEFRHBANTR G E
tax purposes (80) 2)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for  Ra]0Fi I = B RIS 2 &
tax purposes 437 391
Over-provision in prior years BAFEBERE (62) -
Income tax at concessionary rate TR R T R B P15 (165) (165)
Income tax expenses for the year FRAERMAX 660 889
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. EE - FTETBRAEREEM
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS &
(@) Directors’ and the chief executive’s @ EZEEFELFTETHAENE
emoluments
Mr. Ko Man Ho is the chief executive of the Company. BB ERBANRNBITHAEE -
The remuneration paid or payable to the directors of the EfSRENRARES 2 HMnT ¢

Company were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HBZ2020F 12831 HILFEE
Retirement
Salaries, Performance benefits
and other related scheme
Fees benefits bonuses contributions Total
FeR &% RINGER
e Ht3ER HERA FEIMR @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FER TER TR FER

Executive Directors HiTES

Mr. Ko ahE 288 - - 14 302

Ko Man Ho IS¢ - 806 - 18 824

Cheng Ka Wing Exf - 808 - 18 826
288 1,614 - 50 1,952

Independent non- BUKHTES

executive directors

To King Yan, Adam HELC 120 - - - 120

Chan Kim Sun (G:§r]bod 120 - - - 120

Kwok Chee Kin FER 120 - - - 120
360 - - - 360
648 1,614 - 50 2,312
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. EE - T ETHAERESM
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) cAC )
(@) Directors’ and the chief executive’s @ EELFETHAEMS
emoluments (Continued) (#%)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F 12 A31HILFE
Retirement
Salaries,  Performance benefits
and other related scheme
Fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
Hek B RIKEF
e HiiEH B BEICS o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET TET FEL TAT
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Ko BkE 291 - - 14 305
Ko Man Ho B8 - 884 - 18 902
Cheng Ka Wing B - 792 - 18 810
291 1,676 - 50 2,017
Independent non- BIUFHTES
executive directors
To King Yan, Adam HRC 120 - - - 120
Chan Kim Sun GFr o 120 - - - 120
Kwok Chee Kin FER 120 - - - 120
360 - - - 360
651 1,676 - 50 2,377
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were FXARMTESHE I EEEAK
for their services in connection with the management of NAIMEKBAR(ER) EBHN
the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries, if ARG A~ o
applicable.
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments EXATRENIERITESEHE IR E
shown above were for their services as directors of the VEABRNBIESMARIGETSZ A -
Company.
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. EE - FTETBRAEREEM
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) & (5
(b) Five highest paid employees’ emoluments b) EEE=FHHEENHE
The below table shows the five highest paid individuals of TRETRFRREE N A &= 5
the Group during the year, of which two (2019: two) are AT EFRMA019F : ME) A
directors of the Company for the years ended 31 T R E £ 20194 & 2020412 A 31
December 2019 and 2020. BIEFERRRFES -
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Salaries and other benefits e MEMET 2,682 2,954
Performance related bonuses RN AEREIEAL - -
Retirement benefit scheme R FIFT B
contributions 79 85
Total 4ast 2,761 3,039
The number of the highest paid employees who are not WHARTESNR=H EES AH
the directors of the Company whose remuneration fell T AHMERATEE :

within the following bands is as follows:

2020 2019

2020 F 20194F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 3 3
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group FRA - AEBBEREMAARES
to any of the directors of the Company or the chief SAEBTETHAENTEZESH
executive of the Group or the five highest paid individuals AT ERBE - BINAKRERS
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as PINANEB B EZE B TEE -
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors FR - BEEENELMAMNE - FA
waived any emoluments during the year. There was no BEEENITHARR B RESRE

arrangement under which a director or the chief executive MEAAATE B 2 HE -

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M B RR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

13. DIVIDENDS 13. KA
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of RENIER AT IR QT
the Company recognised TmRR RS
as distribution during the year:
2019 Final — HK$0.0075 per share 2019 AR E — B%0.0075% 7T
(oefore share consolidation)/HK$0.075 (B2 & 081, BX0.075 %8 T
per share (after consolidation) (2018 (BHH12) (2018 FKRE — &K
Final — HK$0.013 per share (before 0.018% 7T (15 & AT, B
share consolidation)/HK$0.13 per 013 T (MDA HE))
share (after share consolidation)) 7,500 13,000
2020 Interim — Nil (2019 Interim — 2020 FH B — & (2019 Hf
HK$0.01 per share (before share — % 0.01 38T (1D
consolidation)/HK$0.1 per share AHET), R 0.1 BT (1D
(after share consolidation)) AHFH2)) - 10,000
Total 4t 7,500 23,000
No dividend was proposed for ordinary shareholders of the B EEARNUR  BEEZERAAREE
Company since the end of the reporting period. F% i% 5K B RS B, o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the FRERZFTHERATEETE
following data:
2020 2019
2020 &£ 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Earnings: B :
Earnings for the purpose of calculating ARstESRERER N EF]
basic earnings per share (FREF])
(profit for the year) 2,551 3,143
’000 ‘000
T F %
(Restated)
(ge&:5)
Number of shares: RHEE :
Weighted average number of ordinary ARt G RERR LB
shares for the purpose of calculating NEFHE AR
basic earnings per share 100,000 100,000
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the AR ESRERZT AL BRINE T
purpose of calculating basic earnings per share has been HEELFAE - LURERARQE 8202048
adjusted to reflect the effect of the Share Consolidation of the ASHBREMMBRNEHOTE B
Company with effect from 5 August 2020 as detailed in note BERHIFE24 ©
24,
No diluted earnings per share for both years were presented as HAMEFEASEERBEDETER
there were no potential ordinary shares outstanding for both f& - EFEHEZ|GRESRT -
years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y%  BERRE

Leasehold Computer
land and Leasehold and office
building improvement equipment Total
HELTH# HEWE EiR
kigF &1 MORE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET
Cost 22
As at 1 January 2019 M2019%1A1H 29,877 - 594 30,471
Additions NE - 210 - 210
As at 31 December 2019 120194 12 5318 29,877 210 594 30,681
Accumulated depreciation ZEitiFE
As at 1 January 2019 »2019F1A1H 260 - 207 467
Charge for the year FRFAY 1,039 18 119 1,176
As at 31 December 2019 % 2019412 A31 8 1,299 18 326 1,643
Net book value BREEE
As at 31 December 2019 72019412 A31 H 28,578 192 268 29,038
Cost 2%
As at 1 January 2020 and R2020F 1 A1E K
31 December 2020 2020412 A31H 29,877 210 594 30,681
Accumulated depreciation ZiHiTE
As at 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 1,299 18 326 1,643
Charge for the year FRRX 1,039 20 119 1,178
As at 31 December 2020 7202012 A31 H 2,338 38 445 2,821
Net book value REFEE
As at 31 December 2020 2020 12 31 H 27,5639 172 149 27,860
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE2020F 12 A1 HIEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 1% - BER®KE @®

(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are

L - BB EREBEE EFRAT

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per LB EGIEEITINE -

annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the term of HE L RIEF FRERT 3
remaining land lease HEFHAN

Leasehold improvement 10% HEMERE 10%

Computer and office equipment 20% B NS N 20%

As at 31 December 2020, leasehold land and building of the
Group with carrying value of approximately HK$27,539,000
(2019: HK$28,578,000) were pledged with a bank to secure a
loan (note 22) granted to the Group.

MR2020F12A31H AEBBEBEY
27,539,000/% 7T (20194 : 28,578,000
70) A E i RIEFEAR T —MRT - MU
PSR TASBHER (Fizz22) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. BEEE

Trademarks
EE
HK$'000
FHET
Cost J5%:N
As at 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, R20194F1 A1H ~2019F 12 A31 8 »
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 202041 A1 8 K&2020F12 431 H 10,000
Amortisation HeH
As at 1 January 2019 20191 A1 H 1,417
Charge for the year FRRZ 1,000
As at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 M 2019F 12 A31 H X% 20201 A1H 2,417
Charge for the year FARE 1,000
As at 31 December 2020 72020912 A31 B 3,417
Carrying amount BREE
As at 31 December 2020 R 2020F 12 31 H 6,583
As at 31 December 2019 R 20194F 12 A31 H 7,583

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the

following periods:

LBV EEERARERFH - ZFE
TEBERAT B AEREE

Trademarks 10 years iz 104
17. INVENTORIES 17. 78
2020 2019
2020 £F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHET
Finished goods in transit TEERK & 838 2,804
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

18. EZ R HMBWRE  BNARK

PREPAYMENT AND DEPOSITS HEES
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Trade receivables 2 5 e GRIE 20,301 3,207
Less: Allowance for credit losses A EEEREE (66) -
20,235 3,207
Other receivables H b RIAE 5,422 10
Rental and utilities deposits ek BEEERS 67 67
Trade deposits paid (note below) BNESRE (RATHE) 28,594 4,304
Prepayments TR 372 488
54,690 8,076
Presented as non-current assets 2 RIEREEE 67 67
Presented as current assets EIAERSEE 54,623 8,009
54,690 8,076

Note: Trade deposits paid represented 30% prepayment to the

suppliers.

The Group either demands for full settlement upon delivery of
goods or allows credit periods of no longer than 30 days upon

delivery of goods, except that the Group allows credit period of

no longer than 150 days upon delivery of goods for certain

customers.

i - BN EZRSEM B 30% AN

A -

AEBEERNZNEYE2BEBFHR D
BN EMETZR 0K
ETEP  ARERBAXMNEWEST

ZI150 RHEEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENT AND DEPOSITS (Continued)
The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables of the
Group for credit losses, if any presented based on the invoice
dates and net of loss allowance:

18. EZRHMBWRE  BNAXK

HRES @)

AT ARERTAREEAMHSIIREY
180 E 5 B U HOE M BRI HATIOING B
1

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Trade receivables E 5 EWRIE
0 to 30 days 0& 30K 6,705 2,263
31 to 60 days 31E60K 5,363 19
61 to 90 days 612 90K 1,169 3
Over 90 days 90 KM F 6,998 922
20,235 3,207

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Credit limits attributed to customers and credit term
granted to customers are reviewed regularly. The majority of the
trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have no
history of defaulting on repayments.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade receivables
and measures the lifetime ECL on each debtor individually.

As at 31 December 2020, included in the trade receivables and
net of loss allowance were an aggregate amount of
HK$16,520,000 (2019: HK$2,057,000) which are not past due
and regarded as having low default risk by the management of
the Company based on regular repayment history in the ECL
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE2020F 12 A1 HIEFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 18. EZ R HEMBWRIE - AN

PREPAYMENT AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management the Group uses
debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its customers
because these customers consist of a large number of small
customers with common risk characteristics that are
representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due
in accordance with the contractual terms. The following table
provides information about the exposure to credit risk for trade
receivables which are assessed on a collective basis by using
provision matrix within lifetime ECL.

BHRES @)

AT EBEERREEN— B9 K&
0 55 R 5 75 A B 6 DA ST 2 L2 5 MDA
EREAZEEFREARAGLARRSE
BB NREE  RERMREREFREA
WIERZ A EESRENRE ) - TRIR
HEBESEERBENEERBRER %
ZEETE A2 BT B EE NG
FE I R R BT o

Gross carrying amount FRE4E
2020
2020 F

Average Trade
loss rate receivables
FiEEE EBIEWRE
HK$°000
FHET
Current (not past due) BUER (R E) 0.1% 16,528
1 1o 30 days past due BHEI1E30H 0.2% 3,647
31 to 60 days past due wHA31E60H 0.7% 13
61 to 90 days past due #HA61 £ 90 H 1.3% 1
More than 90 days past due B HARE A 90 H 46.5% 112
20,301

Except for the amount of approximately HK$627,000 written off
as uncollectible for the year ended 31 December 2019, the
management of the Group have assessed the ECL of all trade
receivables as insignificant and therefore it did not result in an
impairment allowance for the that year. For the year ended 31
December 2020, approximately HK$135,000 was written off as
uncollectible.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

BREE2019F12 A1 BIEFEMBE AT
AT UL B B & BE49627,0008 L 9) + AN E
EEECDTEMEESERFIBERNEHRE
BEBEBYTEXN  ARTEEHZFEN
SHAEREHS - B ZE 2020512 A1 HIEFE
#9135,000 8 7L 2 M $H A AT I[E] o

REEW B Z BRI A TAERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE2020F12 A1 HIEFE

18.

19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENT AND DEPOSITS (Continued)
Gross Carrying amount (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the balance of other receivables
represents an amount receivable from the ultimate holding
company of the Group and receivable of trade deposit refund
from a supplier, which was fully settled in January 2021. The
maximum amounts outstanding of receivable from the ultimate
holding company of the Group during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2020 are approximately HK$10,000 and
HK$23,000 respectively. The amount was non-trade in nature,
denominated in HKS, interest-free, unsecured and repayable on
demand.

Trade and other receivables and deposits denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

18. EZRHMBWRE  BNAXK

EHRIZEE @

AREAR(E (&)

202012 A31 B » B b fE U GRIB & 4
B FE S B B B A% AR A R 38 R FE Ut
EENESZRSRR(ER2021F1 A%
H4EE ) o H E 20194 20204 12 A 31
H I F 8 I A S B S AR AR A AR (E
BREZE S ED 4 A10,0007% T &
23,0007 - ZHREBIE S IEE - LB
TLRHE - B - EIKIRRBEREREE -

NHEBAEEERNINEEEAINERIIE
M8 P R EAM B TR RIREFHI T

2020 2019

2020 & 20194

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

EUR I 113 98

HK$ BT - 81
BANK BALANCES AND CASH . BITEBRERE

Bank balances and cash denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the relevant group entities and the
Company are set out below:

NEREEER R AR RN E R IASN
EEIEMRITESRRIRSEHINOT

2020 2019

2020 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

EUR BT 445 17,166
HKS$ PETT 1,140 1,132
RMB AR 102 76
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE2020F 12 A1 HIEFE

19. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (Continued)
For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020, the Group
performed impairment assessment on bank balances and

19. BITHEBREEES @)

HZE 20194 %2020 12 A31HILFE
RNEBERITHEBETRENG - B4
W FHRITORA A MERIE - ThRER
AEBRERERREETAWETASE
BIFSHNEEREBATRS - AHEE
20194 K 20204 12 A 31 H It FEIR1T4
BRI BT RIS N IR 28 -

concluded that the probability of defaults of the counterparty
banks are insignificant as the Group only transacts with
reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit rating agencies. Details of impairment
assessment of bank balances for the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2020 are set out in note 28.

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. EZ R HMENFIA

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Trade payables BB EMNFUA 3,540 1,054
Accrued expenses st 565 514
Other payables Hofth fE A 5B 3,090 691
7,195 2,259

The credit period on purchase of goods is no longer than 30

BEERNEERRTEZRI0OR - RER

days. The ageing analysis of the trade payables of the Group LSHIK  REFEKRBREZREENNE S E

presented based on the invoice dates at the end of each
reporting period is as follows:

MRIERE ST :

2020 2019

2020 &£ 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

TEx FHET

0 to 30 days 0E 30K 2,796 741
31 to 60 days 31E60K 166 313
Over 91 days N> 578 -
3,540 1,054
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M B RR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 20. EF REMENRE S

Trade and other payables denominated in currencies other than AR EBEENINEEE UINEETE
the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out KB 5N EMEMRZREESMT
below.
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
EUR BT 2,149 504
HKS BT 639 607
RMB AR 2,200 336
21. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 21. EHEE
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Short-term advances received B &P YER Y RE BRE R
from customers:
— Sales of apparel products with the — REEREE LR
provision of supply chain HpE B IR AR TS
management services 102 2,226
When the Group receives a deposit before the control of the MAEERREEQNTHEEREEP
apparel products are passed to the customers, this will give rise BIRREFEE AN BERAENEREE
to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the control of £ HEREEGHNIRHEEREERPR
the apparel products is passed to the customers and revenue DAL A GHE

of the respective contracts are recognised.

140  VISION INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R M
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE

22. BANK BORROWINGS

22. SRITER

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&x FHET
Trust receipt loan EREBIBEE R 22,285 -
Mortgage loan R\ER 10,035 10,340
Secured bank borrowings EHEARIRITIER 32,320 10,340
Carrying amounts of bank borrowings RIEE SRR P AT 3
based on scheduled repayment dates EREHZRTEREDE
set out in the loan agreements
Within one year —FR 22,971 552
More than one year, but not more than —FLALE - ETBBRS
two years 701 578
More than two years, but not more than ~ FI4EIA - BT EBRBRE
five years 2,197 1,896
More than five years AFUE 6,451 7,314
32,320 10,340
Analysed as: DM ¢
Amounts due within one year shown FIRREIBEE N —F AR H
under current liabilities and contain W EEERERIETD
a repayment on demand clause o) 22,971 552
Amounts that are not repayable within RIS HREB —FRKREREE
one year from the end of the reporting ERSRERERERNEHE
period but contain a repayment (IR REBEET)
on demand clause (shown under
current liabilities) 9,349 9,788
32,320 10,340
Less: Amounts shown under current A PR E B EIE TRKIE
liabilities (32,320 (10,340)
Amounts shown under non-current SIAIERB B EE NHRIE
liabilities - B
Fixed—rate borrowings TE FI| R A& 5K 22,285 -
Variable —rate borrowings EBFEER 10,035 10,340
32,320 10,340

The variable-rate bank borrowings carry interests at premiums
over Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”). The
effective interest rate on bank borrowings is 1.76% (2019:
4.66%) per annum as at 31 December 2020.

ZEFRBITEFBBEEBRITRERE
((EB|TALEFRED ZHEEAE - R
202012 AG1 A - RITEFWERFF
T 51.76% (20194F : 4.66%) °
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e M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

22. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)
As at 31 December 2020, the entire balance of the Group’s
bank borrowings is secured by certain of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment with carrying amount of HK$27,539,000
(2019: HK$28,578,000) (note 15).

Bank borrowings denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out

22, SRITER @
202012 A31 B » ANEERTE R
2 E e B A S BIIREE 427,539,000 %
JL(20194F : 28,578,000/% 7t ) B9 & F ¥
¥ - WE REREERE (FIE15) »

NEREEERNINGEERIAINEETIE
EERITREREINNT

below:
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
EUR BT 2,440 -
RMB AR 262 -
HK$ I 10,035 10,340

23. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

23. EERIBBEE

Accelerated

tax Intangible

depreciation assets Total

IEBETE BREE st

HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FHET FHET

As at 1 January 2019 ®201941 H1H I 426 503
(Credit) charge to profit or loss () BEmk (FsE11)

(note 11) (136) 165 29

As at 31 December 2019 and MR2019F12A31B R

1 January 2020 20201 A1H (59) 591 532
(Credit) charge to profit or loss (T A) BBz 0Bk (BI5E11)

(note 11) (135) 165 30

As at 31 December 2020 R2020F 12 A31H (194) 756 562
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e M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE

24. SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements of share capital of the Company are

disclosed as follows:

&N
AARMRAZBHFHERFMOT -

Number of
Shares Share Capital
R EE [N
HK$’000
FAET
Ordinary shares LB
Authorised: JETE
As at 1 January 2019 (HK$0.01 each), 7201941 A1 8 (8%0.01/8T)
31 December 2019 and 20194 12 A 31 B % 2020 F
1 January 2020 1H1H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Share Consolidation (note below) a0t (AT RE) (9,000,000,000) -
As at 31 December 2020 (HK$0.1 each) K2020F 12 A31H
(BR®EEOC.1BT) 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITREAE :
As at 1 January 2019 (HK$0.01 each), ®2019F1 A1 8 (#A%0.01%87T)
31 December 2019 and 20194 12 A 31 A & 2020 F
1 January 2020 1H1H 1,000,000,000 10,000
Share Consolidation (note below) 1 & B (R LA THMiFE) (900,000,000) -
As at 31 December 2020 (HK$0.1 each) 720204 12 31 H
(H80.1%87T) 100,000,000 10,000

Note: Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the extraordinary

general meeting of the Company held on 3 August 2020, the
Company implemented the share consolidation with effect from
5 August 2020 (the “Share Consolidation”), on the basis that
every ten issued and unissued existing shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each were consolidated into one consolidated share of
HK$0.1 each, ranked pari passu in all respects with each other.
Upon completion of the Share Consolidation, the Company’s
share capital consists of 100,000,000 consolidated shares of
HK$0.1 each.

Further details, including the above adjustment, of the Share
Consolidation were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 8 July 2020, the circular issued by the Company
dated 16 July 2020, and the poll results of the extraordinary
general meeting were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 3 August 2020.

Mt IRIEA QAN 20208 A3 HETHRE
BERRS FRBNEERER  AARA
2020 F 8 A5 HRERKHEH ([ BREBE
Bt])  REASHRERAEE.1EITH
ARRBBEITRABITHREAERNDEHA—
REREECIBITHEHRG itz
MEME T EZEE RS - RIEH A 6
FER & AN A AR AN B2 #E 100,000,000 %
BREEABITHA GG

EREBROHEHNE—TFB(RELLA
B)HRAREBEA202067 AsHH
N ARARHEAB2020F 7 B16 HEY
WK MRRFFRIAEHERRAGERE
RARARIBHEIA2020568 A3HMAE »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE2020F12 A1 HIEFE

25.

26.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
The Group participates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

(the “MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes the
lower of HK$1,500 or 5% of relevant payroll costs per person
to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by the
employees.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to these
retirement benefits schemes is to make the specified
contributions. The total amounts contributed by the Group to
the schemes and costs charged to the profit or loss represents
contributions paid or payable to the scheme by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the scheme. The retirement
benefits scheme contributions made by the Group amounted to
HK$137,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$148,000).

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(@) Related party balances included in other
receivables
Saved as disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group did not have any other
significant outstanding balances with relate parties at the
end of the reporting period.

144 VISION INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2020

25.

26.

3B k1R AT 8
AEBARSHE B ARES2RRH
MRS B ((RMESHB]) - B2 4
ERAEEZEAESH  YAZAARY
ZHERE -

B EKEMS  ARE/S MR
TEeF &R E B EH 1,500 BT BE R E
HEMAS%HN S RARKERE)ER
Wk - M IMELFEENK -

AEBERZSRANBAAEEENEER
EH IR E MR - AEEMZ S EED
BB R ARSI R AR A S EIZ
ZERTER AR T L KR ZET BB A%
BRI - #H = 202012 A31 B [F4F
B AEBEDNRKERNEHRRE
137,000 7T (2019 £F : 148,000/ L) °

RESKE
(@) BEET &R (GEARMEI
)

e Mg mRM 18I IEEE I -
62 [ A S o B SR 428 o] EL At L8
BITHEAREEGE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R M
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE

26. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued) 26. BAEFHE )

(b) Related party transactions (o)
Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, during the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group entered into the following transactions
with related parties:

MG E M BRREMIBOTEES
SN A E E2020F 12 A31 H IF F
B RNEBMEEEFTVUATRS

Name of related party Nature of transaction 2020 2019
BERER ReEME 2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Meridian Industries Garment Purchase for the apparel products - 2,997
(Cambodia) Limited
(note below)
Meridian Industries Garment BEREEM

(Cambodia) Limited ( & LA B 5E)

Note: The related party is controlled by Mr. Murray Ko, and his
spouse

(c) Compensation of key management (c)
personnel
The remuneration of directors of the Company, being the

M - ZEET AL R AR BE

# -
TEETEAE Hm

RERAEXRRES(EEEEAR)

key management personnel, during the year were as BIEFBaN T
follows:

2020 2019
2020 £F 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Short term benefits G HAfE A 2,262 2,327
Post-employment benefits BERL R 50 50
2,312 2,377

2020 F 3 / FHBEIRER B R A
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e M EWRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE2020F12 A1 HIEFE

27.

28.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. EXEKRER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group REBEBTEREER  URREE QAR
companies will be able to continue as a going concern while WIFECE  FNBERELESRERT
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation B APREIEINREER - BEEKE
of the debt and equity balance. The overall strategy remains BEFERFIE -
unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which AEENEAGEERFEBER  B2IER
includes bank borrowings disclosed in note 22, net of cash and TER(EERKE22) KRR RIES
cash equivalents, and equity attributable to owner of the ZEVMURAAREA ABLER (BIEE
Company, comprising issued share capital, retained profits and BATIRA ~ RE S R EAMREE)
other reserves.
The directors of the Group review the capital structure regularly. AEBESTHRTERNERE - (EALLR
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost and the R 3D EFEEEAKANELLE
risks associated with each class of the capital. Based on the BAEBENRR ERNEFNESR  £~5
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its B BEETIR . BITHESRED
overall capital structure through issue of new shares, issue of WAEESB T EEERE AL -
new debt and redemption of existing debts.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. €@ T H
Categories of financial instruments TR TEDHE
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Financial assets: eREE:
Financial assets at amortised cost REHERAGTENSRMEE 31,770 33,809
Financial liabilities: THEME:
Financial liabilities measured RBER AT ENSRBE
at amortised cost 39,515 12,599

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables and deposits, amount due from ultimate holding
company, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables
and bank borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B EWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE2020F 12 A1 HIEFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 28. LEIT A

Categories of financial instruments (Continued) TRITASE @

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the BRZES LRI AMNFEN BN TRE -
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial HZSem I EEENRARBET SRR
instruments include market risks (currency risk and interest rate (BEEREREFERE)  EERBRRE
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate Rk o BIEZERBOBERSHEN T
these risks are set out below. The management manages and EREEEERETZSRABRE  BR
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are Ko B A R EGE & R B o

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(@) Market risk (a) TiEEK
Currency risk B
Certain trade and other receivables, deposits, bank TEENETE S KEMBUR
balances and cash, trade and other payables and bank e RITEBREES ‘féf%&ﬁﬁ\{ﬁ
borrowings of the Group are denominated in foreign ERFRIERBRITERASEBSE TR
currencies of the respective group entities which are HEE EMEIIME - 2 S EEEERINE
exposed to foreign currency risk. [=\Bg

B0 SN SR R o A
% [ EEZRHNE R B A TE - WA
LR B B R HNEE AL R

The Group currently do not have a foreign currency NS
hedging policy. However, management monitors foreign m
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant =
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency REREIR - NEELAINESER
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of BEREERBRZEEENT

each reporting period are as follows:

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Assets BE
EUR BT 558 17,265
HK$ BT 1,140 1,212
RMB AR 102 76
Liabilities =R
EUR BT 4,589 504
HK$ BT 10,674 10,947
RMB AR 2,462 336
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e M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Categories of financial instruments (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on
fluctuation of EUR, RMB and HK$ for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2020.

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pledged with US$, the
Group does not expect any significant movements in the
US$/HKS exchange rates. Therefore, the following
sensitivity analysis does not include the effect between
US$ and HK$.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(2019: 5%) increase and decrease in foreign currencies
against US$ as at 31 December 2020. The percentage of
the sensitivity rate used represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis adjusts their
translation at the year-end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates at the year ended. A positive number
below indicates an increase in post-tax profit where
foreign currencies strengthen 5% against US$. For a 5%
weakening of foreign currencies against US$, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on post tax profit.

. E@BI AW

TR ITEDE@®

(a)

miZEE (&)

AN & F R = 20194F £ 20204 12
AS1BILEEHERT ARBK
B TTR BRSNS LB o

A B TTRE & S TT Rl - AT
HETHAATERTGHREMEKN
28 Al UTERESTTEE
KXTEBTZHNTE -

TRANAEBEMN2020F 12 A31 H
O H T2 T L (B BB 5% (2019
F 5% MBRE - TABKERS
HREREEREHINEERESES
)25 - BRESMRFERRER
MINEE RSN S B ABAME - T
SCIE SUEIMNE KT AHES% R - R
B m Mg WML E TR E
5% BEBRBERNELESERAR

B2 488
T

2020 2019

2020 £ 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Impact on post-tax profit of the Group i 7 £ B[4 #5418 i F| 10 57 2 (267) 689
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances and bank
borrowings (see note 22 for details). The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuations of the HIBOR.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
interest-bearing financial assets and financial liabilities
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year and basis points increase
or decrease is used. Bank balances are excluded from
sensitivity analysis as the directors of the Company
consider that the exposure of cash flow interest rate risk
arising from variable-rate bank balances is insignificant.

If interest rates on variable-rate interest-bearing financial
liabilities had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year ended 31 December 2020 would decrease/
increase by HK$42,000 (2019: HK$43,000).

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables as stated in note 18, and bank balances as
stated in note 19.

. ERIT R

SRIASE®

(a)

(b)

miSmEkE (E)

= 2
AEBHEERA BT SRITRER IR
ER(FEFRRM T2 WRERE
MEER - AKENRSRENEE
REBEPNRBBRITAEREBZK
) o

HBEDT

AT SURE DT IRIE N R & HI R 80 7
KEMETE © MBI B RERRN
BEHRAAREENAEEREER
TREBENBEFESRMEEL BE
FREELE IR D - GURE ST
BRERITER  BARREZRARR
SFENM T BIRITAE R E VIR
EREMNEXABRTZELTEK -

TWLLZ BRI R T BN S RA E 2 FIER
EF TR B0 (EERE - AT A
HHEFTE  BIRE BB ZE 20204
12 A31 B IEFE R &R iR 14
Hn42,0007 7T(20194F : 43,000/87T) °

EERK
AEENEERREERARWZE
18 Pl 89 & 5 FE W S0 I8 K T sE 19 P
A IRTTAE B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE2020F12 A1 HIEFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
Management of the Group adopted a policy on providing
credit facilities to new customers. A credit investigation of
the customers or the ultimate customers if those
contracts allow the Group to obtain payment directly from
the ultimate customers under certain circumstance,
including assessment of financial information and advice
from business partners in relation to potential customers
would be required to be launched. The level of credit
granted must not exceed a predetermined level set by the
management. Credit evaluation is performed on a regular
basis.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had concentration
of credit risk as 40.4% (2019: 42.9%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest debtor. The
Group’s concentration of credit risk on the top five largest
debtors accounted for 99.9% (2019: 99.9%) of the total
trade receivables as at 31 December 2020. For a long-
term customer, the Group allows a credit term of 150
days upon delivery of goods. For other customers, the
Group either demands for full settlement upon delivery of
goods or allows credit periods of no longer than 30 days
upon delivery of goods.

In order to minimise the credit risk of trade receivables,
the management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, management of the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate provisions
for impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts
on trade receivables. The Group applies simplified
approach on trade receivable to provide for ECL
prescribed by HKFRS 9 with details disclosed in note 18.
In this regard, management of the Group considers that
the credit risk on trade receivables is significantly reduced.
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TR ITEDE@®

(b)

FERRE (&)
KEEF &R E S5 ER R
AEEEREHHAMEPRHGEE
BMERMN—BREK - WRETER
T ZEFENAFASEERNRK
BEFEBSEMR - BIBAHEPH&RL
EFNEERRALT  2EHUWKE
FHETTRHS  BEREERHERE
EFMER - BRHENEERETSE
BERERENRTRE - FEE
TTE HAHETT o

2020412 A31 B » AEEBFEF
EERE - TTHNE S EBGIERE
40.4% (2019 4F : 42.9%) KR E AREEH
WEREBA - AEBERAKEBHA
KR EE R EF 2020F 12 A 31
HHE 5 U IE 4258 99.9% (2019
F:909%) - AEEMR—ERHAR
PREMNEERAINEME150
B 8REMERS  AEBZEKNR
RHEYE2HEEXIFR AN EY
HEAZRI0AREE -
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

()

Credit risk (Continued)

Bank balances

The Group has concentration of credit risk on its bank
balances as the entire balances as at 31 December 2020
are deposited with three (2019: three) banks. The credit
risk for bank balances is considered not material as such
amounts are placed in reputable banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
There has been no recent history of default in relation to
these banks and thus the risk of default is regard as low.

For deposits, management of the Group makes periodic
as individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information starting from 1 January 2019.
The management of the Group believes that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balance of other receivables and deposits.

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group and the
Company monitor and maintain levels of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s and the Company’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group and the Company
can be required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with
a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the
banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity
dates for other financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

. ERIT R

SRIASE®

(b)

(c)

EERE(E)

RITAERR
REBEREBRTHEBRBEEREER
%+ JYBR 2020 12 A31 AW 2
TR = (20194F « =) 48
17 o RITHEBRNEERRIETEKX
T B 525 SR IE 7 U B B B 5 A AT
THENTAEBSERANLEEER
FFEIERTT o STHABT IR RZ FIRITIR
BE X L8 - B E REELR

G
RA

o

HREemME  AEEEEEERNESE
EHEH - BTARARE 2019451
B1ARBIIENEGEEEMAEE
BB H fh JE IR TR /9 BT s 1 E BR
HEATERIFE - NEEBEIREMEE
AEMEMBRFERIZEHAREE
HEHRTETEERNEERR -

RBESRR
REBRBESRRE  REE LK
RAERRE MRS EBYHIKF
REARRERERREERKRF
A SR B R AR B EEMRT
TRERERERBNTE

TRALREERARFANEHEAE
BN AHBHER - RRIREAE
BEERARRANERAEREZAN
AURREREMSGIE - AMmE -
BERERERGRORITER - T
WMABIRITEDEFTERLERN - 5
FIARFREZARN - Kb /E
BZHHATNARECEERRAE

# o
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

28. €RIT A (%)
SRt T B9 %8 )

() Liquidity risk (Continued) () FEBESER(E)
Liquidity tables REBE TR
Weighted
average Total
effective ~ Repayable Within undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  on demand 3months  cash flows amount
MEF ABRE
ERFZE REREE 3EAR mEARE BREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TER THER TR THER
Non-derivative financial F{7£4RERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables & 5 & H e 308 N/ANiiE 7,195 - 7,195 7,195
Banking borrowings RITIER
—fixed rate —ElEf® 1.36 22,285 - 22,285 22,285
Bank borrowing RITIER
— variable rate — FHFIE 1.85 10,035 - 10,035 10,035
As at 31 December 2020 2020412 4318 NATEF 39,515 - 39,515 39,515
Non-derivative financial F{T£4RER
liabilities
Trade and other payables & 5 & E i e 28 N/ARiE B 1,205 1,054 2,259 2,259
Bank borrowings BITIER
— variable rate — FEE 4.66 10,340 - 10,340 10,340
As at 31 December 2019 32019412 A 31 H N/AZNiiE 11,545 1,054 12,599 12,599

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “repayable on demand” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2020, the
aggregate carrying amounts of these bank borrowings
were HK$32,230,000 (2019: HK$10,340,000),
respectively.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity tables (Continued)

Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors of the Company do not believe that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The directors of the
Company believe that such bank borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the
aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount
to HK$33,855,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:

HK$13,881,000), respectively and set out as below:

. ERIT R

TR T AESE @

(o) "REBELRARE)
REBE T ()
KERRNEE BN - AAFE

RBBIT P RAIBe BT BB

ERAIGER - ARAIESRAZE
RITERGIERER R E 25818
FEHER - R2020F12A318 -
ERzA KSR RERERR
33,855,000% 7t (2019 % :
13,881,000 7T) - FFIEHFIAT -

Bank borrowings — fixed
RITER — BERE
As at 31 December

R12A31H
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
% %
Weighted average interest rate hniEFFI= 1.36 -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Total undiscounted cash flows RITRREREREE

— within 3 months —=@AR 22,360 —
Carrying amount IREE 22,285 -
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Categories of financial instruments (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity tables (Continued)

28.

£RT A

TR ITEDE@®

(c)

RBESER(E)
RBEDE(B)

Bank borrowings — variable
BITER — FHR=H

As at 31 December

M12H8381H
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
% %
Weighted average interest rate DIREEEFIR 1.85 4.66
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within 3 months 3EAA 224 251
3 months to 1 year SEAE1F 672 752
1-5 years 1EE54F 3,583 4,013
Over 5 years 5FLA 7,016 8,865
Total undiscounted cash flows RITRREMELREE 11,495 13,881
Carrying amount BREE 10,035 10,340

The amounts included above for variable rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change
if changes in variable rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting
period.

(d) Fair value

The management considers that the carrying amounts of
the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements at the end of each year approximate to their
fair values. Such fair values have been determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020% 12 A31BILEE

29. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flow were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

from financing activities.

20. MEFHELENEEHR

TRAAAEEELARERTDNHNAEDN
2 BRASIFRSEY - RELY
EENBERERSREENAEENG
AHERERDBAXERIEZRER
RAKENGERERERDBERBRER
PAERERENAR -

Dividend Bank
payable borrowings Total
ENRE BITHER #Et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
As at 1 January 2019 201941 A1 R - 10,904 10,904
Financing cash flows MEEESRE (23,000) (1,046) (24,046)
Dividend declared EEIRKRE 23,000 - 23,000
Finance cost [ 3% - 482 482

As at 31 December 2019 and  A2019F 12 531 H K&

1 January 2020 202041 A1H - 10,340 10,340
Financing cash flows MEBEESRE (7,500) 21,410 13,910
Dividend declared EEIRRKE 7,500 - 7,500
Finance cost B TSR AR - 570 570
As at 31 December 2020 #®2020F 12 A31 H - 32,320 32,320
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30. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 30. AR AMBER

COMPANY
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Unlisted investment in a subsidiary R—EHE AR L HIRE 30,284 30,284
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary A NG ] 19,285 21,629
Prepayments SN 314 438
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIRE 72 73
19,671 22,140
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables H A FE IR 201 115
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 19,470 22,025
NET ASSETS EERE 49,754 52,309
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARR#E
Share capital ik 10,000 10,000
Reserves (Gt 39,754 42,309
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY PRERAER 49,754 52,309
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30. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Movements in the Company’s reserves are as follows:

30. R BEBBEER @)

ARREEHEBOT :

Share Other Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
IR AP 1E Ht RitEBE mat
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET TET FHET
As at 1 January 2019 201961 A1 H 38,444 23,967 (17,742) 44,669
Loss and total comprehensive A &8 & 2 E 5 44 50
expense for the year - - (2,360) (2,360)
As at 31 December 2019 and 220194 12 A31 B
1 January 2020 20201 A1H 38,444 23,967 (20,102) 42,309
Profit and total comprehensive £ A3 | 1 2 T8 U 2 4258
income for the year - - 4,945 4,945
Dividend e - (7,500) - (7,500)
As at 31 December 2020 ®2020%F 12 A31H 38,444 16,467 (15,157) 39,754

At the end of the reporting period, the amount due from a

subsidiary was denominated in HK$, unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

R|EHR - BRHEARKIBTIAE T
FHE - EIEM - 2B NAREREE -
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HZE2020F12 A1 BHILFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries at the end of each reporting

31.

period are as follows:

31. MEBLARFE

RERSHROMBARFBNOT

Equity interest

attributable
Name of Place and date Place of Issued and fully to the Group as at
subsidiary of incorporation ~ operation  paid share capital 31 December Principal activity
1R B L 4t B AEER12A318
WEAREE RABH XY  ERORSERAE B R TEER
2020 2019
2020 2019F
% %
Market Gala Limited BVI, HongKong  Ordinary share 100 100 Investment holding
10 March 2010 USS$1
RERLHS B LEk RAER
2010F3A10H E
Vision Garments Hong Kong, Hong Kong  Ordinary shares 100 100 Sales of apparel products
Limited 17 March 2010 HK$24,000,000 with the provision of
apparel supply chain
management services
HHARKERRE £ EE gl BEERFEER
2010537174 24,000,000 7T REREHEREERG
Vision Worldwide Hong Kong, Hong Kong  Ordinary shares 100 - Sales of construction
Development Limited 15 June 2020 HK$1 materials
FHBREEER AR EE B Edik SHEREEMH
202056 A15H 187
Magnificent Gala Limited ~ BVI, Hong Kong  Ordinary share 100 - Investment holdings
26 October 2020 USS$1
EBENES B LEik REER
2020F10A26H 1%L
Vision International Hong Kong, Hong Kong  Ordinary shares 100 - Dormant
Capital Management 2 November 2020 HK$1
Limited 0 £ LiEk =8
202011 A2A 1B

None of the subsidiaries had issued debt securities at the end

of the reporting period.
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HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE

32. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The outburst of COVID-19 has brought additional uncertainties
in the global macroeconomic situation which may affect the
Group’s financial performance. However, since the outburst is a
fluid and challenging situation facing all the industries globally,
the degree of impact could not be reasonably estimated at this
stage. The Group will closely monitor the development of the
outburst and assess its impact on the financial position and
operating results of the Group.

The Group does not have other significant subsequent events.

32. HIREE

COVID- 1981 8 AR IR A BB 25K
BINOTHHBARZ - Al @ EAEED
IS4 - AT - BRRIBEREBIRATA
TEER—ETEE REFKEEN B/ -
FI R BRI A S IR b P ERE -
NEBBBIERZBEHOHERE TG
HEAEEVBRNREEEENTE -

AEEW EEMBAHIREIS o

2020 F 3 / FHBEIRER B R A

159



FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBRE

A summary of the results, assets, liabilities and equity of the Group for ~ANEENBER AR REENELE - BFE - A&
the last five financial years is as follows: KRR ERNNOT

RESULTS X
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2020 F 2019 2018 % 2017 &F 2016 F
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT & FHET FHET FHET
Revenue U #5 92,821 84,686 111,862 71,399 46,016
Profit before tax 4 T Al i A 3,211 4,032 15,753 25,192 45,209
Income tax expense FRiS i (660) (889) (3,241) (2,727) (2,335)
Profit for the year FRE 2,551 3,143 12,512 22,465 42,874
Profit for the year (excluding FEREF (B E
Listing expenses and xR
financial guarantee income) B SRR 2,551 3,143 15,514 13,032 14,888
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY S5 BERES
As at 31 December
®W12H31H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2020 F 2019 20184 2017 2016 F
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT & FHET FHET FHET
Current assets RENEE 63,215 41,338 66,738 44,762 63,549
Non-current assets IEREEE 34,510 36,688 38,740 10,184 10
Total assets BEBRE 97,725 78,026 105,478 54,946 63,559
Current liabilities MENAE 39,617 14,999 22,623 16,706 40,789
Non-current liabilities EmEBE 562 532 503 343 0
Total liabilities B 40,179 15,531 23,126 17,049 40,789
Net assets BEFE 57,546 62,495 82,352 37,897 22,770
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners AN Q FIEAR AFENL
of the Company G 57,546 62,495 82,352 37,897 22,770

Note: The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for each of the — Miit : E = 20164 %2017 12 A31 B IEMEFE &

two years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 and of the assets, FREBERRE EETE R 2016 F 2017
liabilities and equity as at 31 December 2016 and 2017 have been FI2A3NEWNEE - AERERDESEEBK
extracted from the Prospectus. R

The summary above does not form part of the audited financial BN TR S BRI ER R — 2 o
statements.
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